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Explanation or reason for i ntroduction of bi l l/resol ution: 

Relating to the rental of a dwelling to a victim of domestic violence 

M i n utes : Representative Delmore Testimony #1 
Janelle Moos Testimony #2 
Krista Andrew Testimony #3 
Jeremy Patron Testimony #4 

Representative Del more : Four changes in  the bill. On ly asking for three. I have the 
amendments ready. Ensures that housing can be found for victims of domestic violence. 
Two, Changes the defin ition that wi l l  be taking out. Third it clarifies the notice that must be 
g iven to the owner. Fourth it clarifies safety concerns and changing of locks. (See 
testimony #1) 

Janelle Moss : See testimony #2 

Representative Koppelman : I understand the changes deal with the state housing 
program. Further in it applies to any rental property? 

Janel le Moos : This section is currently in  statute. The only change is the notice. 

Representative Koppelman: It does is clean up the language, but it also relaxes the 
standard? In other words right now there is some verification necessary on l ines 19-20 that 
there really is a domestic violence situation. They have to furnish a copy of the protection 
order. This applies to any landlord, and while I am concerned for the victims. These are 
legal contracts and it appears that if this change were made al l  that would be necessary for 
someone how signs a year lease and three weeks later they just want to move so they 
could tel l  the land lord they feel unsafe and am terminating my lease at the end of the 
month. Current law does seem to do justice. Why relax that so much? 

Janel le Moos: Domestic violence is related to sexual assaults. I don't th ink we have people 
making up issues. What remains is they are responsible on the first months' rent and the 
second if they want to terminate the lease. 
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Representative Koppelman: On the bottom of page three they may request that the lock 
be changed but it is not a requirement. What benefit would this add? The landlord can 
decide whatever they want. 

Janelle Moos: It is important to let the victims know they have rights like this. Fourteen 
other states already have language like that. This just gives permissive language for victims 
to request and we'll work with landlords to do that. 

Chairman Klemi n: It doesn't require landlord to replace the lock. I don't think that will 
change anything. 

Janel le Moos: Meaning that it doesn't requi re them to do so that it is more permissive in 
nature? 

Chairman Klemi n: It just says a tenant can request a landlord to replace the lock at no 
expense to the victim. It doesn't requi re the landlord to replace the lock at no cost to the 
victim. 

Janelle Moos: The important piece is that it is no cost to the victim. 

Chairman Klemi n: What happen if landlord says I'll do it if you pay for the lock? 

Janel le Moos: I thi nk that would be up to the landlord and the victim .  

Representative Stri nden: I like the idea of this section because it lets people know they 
have a right. Do you know of any oats of the statute that have permissive language l ike this 
dealing with domestic violence but aren't directive? 

Janelle Moos: Related to housing or in  terms of domestic violence? 

Representative Strinden: In terms of domestic violence lett ing victims know what their 
rights are. 

Janelle Moos: I would have to take a closer look but I can provide that information. 

Opposition: 

Krista Andrews: See testimony #3 

Representative Anderson: How much does it cost to change a lock? 

Krista Andrews: It may be 75-200 to get a locksmith up to the area. 

Representative Stri nden: The bill has the tenant pay the last month's rent. I am not aware 
of many places that have a lot of open units. How many rental un its are currently vacant? 

Krista Andrews: I do not have statistics on the vacancy rate right now. We don't want to 
have a statute that says they can get out for any reason because now there isn't a housing 
crunch. 
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Representative Strinden : If someone has an eviction due to domestic vio lence and pol ice 
calls are made are those on records for that person? 

Krista Andrews : Yes. Records are kept on all evictions. 

Representative Bead le:  I understand the concern with the notice being so vague. Would 
you have a d isagreement to make the notice stricter deal ing with the police or organization 
that the victim may have to go through? 

Krista Andrews : Yes, we would it still doesn't have the neutral 3rd party and the court 
included. 

Representative Oversen :  There is a section of code that allows a victim to seek 
unemployment after leaving their job for fear of safety. It is a l ittle more comprehensive 
even than the protective order but it allows d ifferent options. You know why a victim may 
feel scared of going to the courts or why they may not enter the lea=gal system. If they 
already fear for their safety, research will show that if they seek a protective order they may 
be at greater risk. So the other options in  here include court order, protection order, 
restrain ing order, other record files that the court, police record, med ical record, affidavit by 
a council, clergy, social worker, or someone with a domestic vio lence background. Is there 
any flexibility with your association at looking at this requirement because if they are not 
wi l l ing to seek protective order they are allowed no protection i n  their housing? 

Krista Andrews : We would look at them to see if they are options. The greater issue is the 
folks taking advantage of the landlords. 

Representative Oversen :  Typically lease agreements have a section that allows you to 
get out of the lease with not very d issimi lar terms to what is allowed under this section as 
far as paying a lease, or two months ahead of time. What is the burden here that's that 
much d ifferent for those who aren't a victim of domestic violence? 

Krista Andrews : There is a duty of landlords to mitigate damages. So if a tenant skips out 
and they have another renter that is there will ing to rent, they can't just say no the unit is 
unavai lable and continue to charge the renter that skipped out. So there is that duty to 
m itigate already. There are some leases they may provide a l ittle bit of an out but most of 
the t ime they say if you signed for a year you have to pay for a year. 

Representative Kelsh: What is a typical amount of time to get a protection order? 

Krista Andrews : It can happen within a couple of days, then 7-10 days later when they will 
return to court with the perpetrator for a hearing. That is where the permanent protection 
order would be issued. It's not too lengthy. 

Representative Kelsh: When you talk about emergency does the judge actual ly do that or 
is it someone else i n  the court system? Do you have to go back and get another one? Does 
it expire quickly? 

Krista Andrews : If you file for an emergency order (couple pages) then the court will 
decide if there is enough information on that to determine if they are able to get the 
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emergency order. At that time they set it on for hearing (7-10 days) they you can ask for a 
more permanent order but they generally last for about a year or two. 

Chairman Klem i n :  As I understand the protection order that is referred to on page 2 is 
something that is on ly issued after a hearing and then this section also says for an order 
prohibiting contact which may be a prehearing exparte emergency order referred to. There 
seems l ike the statute already has some alternatives built into it that's common. The other 
question I have is this section has to do with termination of a lease due to domestic 
violence so then we are adding on a new subsection 11 at the end of that section talking 
about replacing locks which has nothing to do with termination of the lease. Which is the 
subject of this segment? Some other place that this would be more appropriate rather than 
in this termination section or hand alone section of this statute? 

Krista Andrews : For your first question you are correct. You can go for a hearing before a 
jud icial referee. You can go for a hearing. As far as where else it may go, I agree I don't 
think it is appropriate to put it in the section that deals with termination of leases then you're 
adding lock changes as Koppelman added it is permissive. It should not be included and 
second I think it creates ambiguity as to whether or  not the landlord has the discursion to 
say we are or aren't going to replace the locks. It also would place the financial burden on 
the landlord. 

Representative Oversen : If a landlord d id change the locks, is there a way they cannot 
g ive the keys to the offender and the victim? 

Krista Andrews: They are legally supposed to get that key if the perpetrators name is on 
the lease. Unless they went through the formal process of getting them evicted or removed 
from the property. 

Representative Koppelman : Techn ical question, with respect to the eviction, I recognize 
that it is correct if it becomes a legal proceed ing and goes through that process but the first 
step in an eviction process is a notice to the tenant that they are going to be evicted. If the 
tenant vacates voluntarily before court action id required there would n't be record of that 
would there? 

Krista Andrews : No there would not be. You could possibly have a record of a summons 
and complain being filed. 

Representative Koppelman: So it usually doesn't get to that stage does it? 

Krista Andrews : No that is not necessarily accurate. 

Jeremy Petron : See testimony #4 

Representative Oversen :  When we're looking at protections for housing ind icated that 
there other lease violations such as nonpayment of rent, damage, or loud party, etc .. . 
Wouldn't those violations then be grounds that the appl icant otherwise eligible. Is that the 
statue or the amendment written says of for otherwise eligible so they probably would n't be 
others wised elig ible if they have other lease violations not related to domestic violence. 
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Jeremy Petron : Our concern comes from the phrases evicted from and the reason why is 
that they were claiming that they were a victim they could other lease violations and we feel 
that the language is stating that they cannot be evicted then by saying they are a victim of 
domestic violence. 

Representative Koppel man : It appears that you have the most disagreements with pages 
2 and 3 of the bil l .  This other section applies only to housing that is part of a state housing 
program I am not sure how much of your organization is described by that or not. As I read 
that section it does say, it talks about eviction, but then it says if the applicant or tenant 
otherwise qualifies for addition, assistance, participation, or occupancy. If there is loud 
partying, other things the lease says you can't do, or that are grounds for eviction it seems 
to me that you would still be able to evict under this? You cannot simply no refuse to rent if 
you're part of a state housing program, or evict because someone is a victim of domestic 
violence? 

Jeremy Petron : I believe there is something else that states regarding the housing 
systems part of the state program but also regular residential dwellings. The second part of 
your question is that if the language is specifical ly sighting that they can't be evicted or not 
rented to base on the specific situation of domestic violence, we are fine with that. What our 
concern is that if it is interpreted more liberal ly from a judge that it may not be that way. Our 
concern is that it could be stretched further. 

Representative Koppel man : If there is a way to tighten language would you have an 
objection? 

Jeremy Petron :  As on organization no we would not. 

Rocky Gordon : The issue with the protection order or no contact order that came out of a 
lot of compromise. Something has to be in place and that is reasonable. We don't want an 
unattended consequence for destroying lease for term. Leases for term have protection for 
tenants as well such as freezing their rent and so on. Some discussion about the market. 
We operate in Bismarck we have had a half percent of vacancy and there was construction 
but right now we are at about 3-4% vacancy. I hope we don't legislate based on what the 
market is today. Section 11 I would urge the committee to not fil l  the century code with 
things the people may agree to do amongst themselves. I do not know where that would 
stop. 

Representative Oversen :  If this was the compromise that the minimal standard that a 
victim of domestic violence has to show are we really fearful that if we remove or change 
that requirement that there wil l  be masses of people coming forward to get out of their 
leases claiming to be victims of domestic violence? 

Rocky Gordon : I don't think we will have massive amounts of people there may be some. I 
think we would be setting up a situation that would be misused. Such as the companion 
animals issue. 

Representative Oversen : Would you be open to the amendment that puts us in line how 
victims of domestic violence may qualify for unemployment insurance the proof that they 
are required to show in that situation. Would be open to that amendment? 
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Rocky Gordon:  I do not know yet, I would have to see it. There has to be something 
specific and worded i n  a way that can't be misused. 

Representative Klein :  How many units do you have that you rent out? 

Rocky Gordon : 700-800 in the Bismarck area. 

Representative Kle i n :  How many instances relating to this have you had in  the last couple 
of years? 

Rocky Gordon:  I can't bring any to mind. 

Chai rman Klemi n :  Closed the hearing on HB 1217 
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0 Subcommittee 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution : 

Relating to the rental of a dwel l ing to a victim of domestic violence. 

M i n utes : Testimony 1 

Chairman Klemin: Opened the hearing on HB 1 2 1 7  

Representative Oversen: Testimony 1 we are just clarifying and breaking it out to what is 
allowed. It is separating the current language into subdivisions so that you can read it. 

Representative Beadle: Each of the sentences within that subsection 2 of section 3 ends up 
being broken into a new subunit abc. 

Representative Oversen: Moved to adopt the amendment 

Representative Strinden: Seconded 

A Voice Vote was Taken: All in favor 

Motion carries 

Chairman Klemin: In the hearing we had amendments proposed by Representative 
Delmore. On page two removing lines 3-9. 

Representative Maragos: Moved to adopt the amendments 

Representative Bead le: Second 

A voice Vote was Taken: All in favor 

Motion carries 

Representative Zubke: On page one there was some testimony about the being evicted; 
nothing has changed that has it? 
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Chairman Klemin: No, the notes that I have was that they testified saying this was a new 
conviction restriction, second part that they should requi re proof and section four rejected to 
paying for the lock change. Took care of 2 of the 3 .  

Representative Oversen: Their concern wasn't completely founded because that section 
only relates to state housing programs it is not al l  apartment bui ld ings, only those that have 
state assistance. Their concern was that if the renter was also v iolating other sections of 
lease, that they then wouldn't be able to evict them but that is covered in there saying that 
they also have to be i n  compliance with other components of the lease. 

Representative Bead le: Motioned a do pass 

Representative Klein: Seconded 

A Rol l  Cal l Vote was Taken: Yes 1 3, No 0, Absent 1 (Koppelman) 

Motion carries 

Representative Oversen will carry the bi l l  



Proposed Amendments to HB 1217 

Page 2, line 19, after "stating" insert"~" 

Page 2, line 18, after "stating~" insert a new subdivision "a." 

Page 2, line 18, overstrike "that" 

Page 2, line 18, capitalize the "t" in the third "the" 

Page 2, line 20, remove "the notice" 

Page 2, line 20, after the overstricken language insert" 

(1) A court order, protection order, restraining order, or other record filed with a court; 
(2) A police or law enforcement record; 
(3) A medical record indicating domestic violence or sexual assault; or 
(4) A written affidavit provided by an individual who has assisted the tenant in dealing 

with domestic violence or sexual assault and who is a: 
(a) Licensed counselor; 
(b) Licensed social worker; 
( c) Member of the clergy; 
( d) Director or domestic violence advocate at a domestic violence sexual assault 

organization as defined in section 14-07.1-01; or 
( e) A licensed attorney; 

Page 2, line 20, after the comma insert a new subdivision "b." 

Page 2, line 20, capitalize the "t" in the second "the" 

Page 2, line 21, overstrike "and" 

Page 2, line 21, after the comma insert a new subdivision "c." 

Page 2, line 21, capitalize the "t" in the second "the" 

Page 2, line 21, after the period insert a new subdivision "d." 

Page 3, remove lines 28 through 29 



SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 47-16-17.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
amended and reenacted as follows: 

4 7-16-17 .1. Termination due to domestic abuse. 

1. A tenant to a residential lease who is a victim of domestic violence as defined in section 14-

07 .1-01 or fears imminent domestic violence against the tenant or the tenant's minor 

children if the tenant or the tenant's minor children remain in the lease premises may 

terminate a lease agreement, as provided in this section, without penalty or liability. 

2. The tenant must provide advance written notice to the landlord stating~ 

a. tihe tenant fears imminent domestic violence from a person named in 

(1) A court order. protection order, restraining order, or other record filed with a 

court; 

(2) A police or law enforcement record; 

(3) A medical record indicating domestic violence or sexual assault; or 

(4) A written affidavit provided by an individual who has assisted the tenant in 

dealing with domestic violence or sexual assault and who is a: 

(a) Licensed counselor; 

(b) Licensed social worker; 

(c) Member of the clergy; 

(d) Director or domestic violence advocate at a domestic violence sexual assault 

organization as defined in section 14-07.1-01; or 

(e) A licensed attorney; 

b. tihe tenant needs to terminate the tenancy, and 

c. Hhe specific date the tenancy will terminate. 

d. Uhe notice must be delivered by mail, facsimile communication, or in person before 

the termination of the tenancy. 

3. A landlord may not disclose ... 

. .... ,_, _____ , __ _ 
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15.0607.0 1 001 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Delmore 

January 23, 20 1 5  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOU SE BILL NO. 1 21 7  

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  replace the first "section" with "sections" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  remove ", subsection 2 of section 1 4-07. 1 -0 1 , "  

Page 1 ,  line 2, remove "section" 

Page 2, remove lines 3 through 9 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 5.0607 .0 1 00 1  



15.0607.01002 Adopted by the Political Subdivisions 
Title.02000 Committee 

February 5, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1217 

Page 1, line 1, replace the first "section" with "sections" 

Page 1, line 1, remove", subsection 2 of section 14-07.1-01 ," 

Page 1, line 2, remove "section" 

Page 2, remove lines 3 through 9 

Page 2, line 18, overstrike "that the" and insert immediately thereafter "~ 

Page 2, line 20, remove "the notice" 

Page 2, line 20, overstrike", the" and insert immediately thereafter"~ 

ill A court order. protection order. restraining order. or other record 
filed with a court: 

@ A police or law enforcement record : 

Ql A medical record indicating domestic violence or sexual assault: 
or 

ffi A written affidavit provided by an individual who has assisted the 
tenant in dealing with domestic violence or sexual assault and 
who is a: 

.@). Licensed counselor: 

.{Ql Licensed social worker: 

.(g Member of the clergy; 

@ Director or domestic violence advocate at a domestic 
violence sexual assault organization as defined in section 
14-07.1-01 : or 

~ Licensed attorney; 

Page 2, line 21, overstrike the comma and insert immediately thereafter an underscored 
semicolon 

Page 2, line 21, after "and" insert: 

"c. The" 

Page 2, line 21, after the period insert: 

"3." 

Page 2, line 25, overstrike "3." and insert immediately thereafter "4." 

Page No. 1 15.0607.01002 



Page 2, line 30, overstrike "4." and insert immediately thereafter "5." 

Page 3, line 4, overstrike "5." and insert immediately thereafter 116.11 

Page 3, line 7, overstrike 116.11 and insert immediately thereafter "L" 
Page 3, line 12, overstrike "7." and insert immediately thereafter 118. 11 

Page 3, line 19, overstrike 118.11 and insert immediately thereafter "9." 

Page 3, line 21, overstrike "9." and insert immediately thereafter "10." 

Page 3, line 25, overstrike " 1  O." and insert immediately thereafter ".1'.L." 

Page 3, remove lines 28 and 29 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 2 15.0607.01002 
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Roll C all Vote#: tiPJJd1P \ 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. \1X1 

House Political Subdivisions 

D Subcommittee D Conference Committee 

Committee 

Amendment L C# or Description: ...... \5�. ()_(�o�C\ ...... \l�, C ...... 'i�\ D_· �t)��---------------

Recommendation: $ Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 

Other Actions: D Reconsider 

D Without Com mittee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By �{)_\f�(:'c£;�[\ ______ Seconded By ����{'�\�(\-��{'\�----

Representative Yes No Representative Yes No 
Chairman Lawrence R. Klemin Rep. Pamela Anderson 
Vice Chair Patrick R. Hatlestad Rep. Jerry Kelsh 
Rep. Thomas Beadle Rep. Kylie Oversen 
Rep.  Rich S. Becker Rep. Marie Strinden 
Rep.  Matthew M. Klein 
Rep. Kim Koppelman 
Rep. William E. Kretschmar 
Rep. Andrew G. Maragos 
Rep. Nathan Toman 
Rep. Denton Zubke 

Total (Yes) No 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: 'Z\ �l 10\S 
Roll Call Vote #: � 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. f1. \"1 

House Political Subdivisions 

D Subcommittee D Conference Committee 

Recommendation : ttl Adopt Amendment 

Committee 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By �\-\'---"""o.D�UQ---"'+=-D\..._ _____ Seconded By � _..,._,,£;.,,,.NllL""""'--'::..-=..:::::;__ __ __ _ 

Representative Yes No Representative Yes No 
Chairman Lawrence R. Klemin Rep. Pamela Anderson 
Vice Chair Patrick R. Hatlestad Rep. Jerry Kelsh 
Rep. Thomas Beadle Rep. Kylie Oversen 
Rep. Rich S. Becker Rep. Marie Strinden 
Rep. Matthew M. Klein 
Rep. Kim Koppelman 
Rec. William E. Kretschmar 
Rec. Andrew G. Maragos 
Rep. Nathan Toman 
Rep. Denton Zubke 

Total (Yes) 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: 1./�lW\5" 
Roll C all Vote #: 3 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. \?. \'! 

House Political Subdivisions 

0 Subcommittee 0 Conference Committee 

Amendment LC # or Description: 

Committee 

����������������������� 

Recommendation: O Adopt Amendment 

� Do Pass 0 Do Not Pass 
!lS As Amended 

Other Actions: 0 Reconsider 

0 Without Committee Recommendation 
0 Rerefer to Appropriations 

0 

Motion Made By �b-ff ............ lCl......._lt�----- Seconded By _,_'b__._�_.,.� ...,_\ (\'---'----------

Representative Yes No Representative Yes No 
Chairman Lawrence R. Klemin x Rep. Pamela Anderson x 
Vice Chair Patrick R. Hatlestad x Rep. Jerry Kelsh x 
Rep. Thomas Beadle x Rep. Kylie Oversen >< 
Rep. Rich S. Becker "X Rep. Marie Strinden '>< 
Rep. Matthew M. Klein /( 
Rep. Kim Koppelman / 
Rep. William E. Kretschmar )( 
Rep. Andrew G. Maragos x 
Rep. Nathan Toman x 
Rep. Denton Zubke x 

Total (Yes) \� No D 
Absent \ ('boQ@\mo.o� 
Floor Assignment D\leJ)k{} 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 6, 2015 8:11am 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_23_022 
Carrier: Oversen 

Insert LC: 15.0607.01002 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1217: Political Subdivisions Committee (Rep. Klemin, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1217 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, replace the first "section" with "sections" 

Page 1, line 1, remove", subsection 2 of section 14-07.1-01," 

Page 1, line 2, remove "section" 

Page 2, remove lines 3 through 9 

Page 2, line 18, overstrike "that the" and insert immediately thereafter"~ 

Page 2, line 20, remove "the notice" 

Page 2, line 20, overstrike", the" and insert immediately thereafter"~ 

ill A court order, Qrotection order, restraining order, or other 
record filed with a court: 

.0 A QOlice or law enforcement record; 

ill A medical record indicating domestic violence or sexual 
assault; or 

.(1). A written affidavit Qrovided by an individual who has assisted 
the t~nant in dealing with domestic violence or sexual assault 
and who is a: 

{§} Licensed counselor: 

illl Licensed social worker; 

19 Member of the clergy; 

!Ql Director or domestic violence advocate at a domestic 
violence sexual assault organization as defined in section 
14-07.1-01: or 

!§1 Licensed attorney; 

Q,_ The" 

Page 2, line 21, overstrike the comma and insert immediately thereafter an underscored 
semicolon 

Page 2, line 21, after "and" insert: 

"c. The" 

Page 2, line 21, after the period insert: 

"3." 

Page 2, line 25, overstrike "3." and insert immediately thereafter "4." 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_23_022 



Com Standing Committee Report 
February 6, 201 5 8 : 1 1 am 

Modu le ID:  h_stcomrep_23_022 
Carrier: Oversen 

Insert LC: 1 5.0607.01 002 Title: 02000 

Page 2, l ine 30, overstrike "4." and insert immediately thereafter "5." 

Page 3, line 4, overstrike " 5." and insert immediately thereafter "6." 

Page 3, l ine 7, overstrike "6." and insert immediately thereafter " 7." 

Page 3, l ine 1 2 ,  overstrike " 7." and insert immediately thereafter " 8." 

Page 3,  line 19 , overstrike " 8." and insert immediately thereafter "9 ."  

Page 3 ,  l ine 2 1 , overstrike "9." and insert immediately thereafter "j.Q,_" 

Page 3 ,  l ine 25, overstrike " 1 0." and insert immediately thereafter ".11." 

Page 3, remove lines 28 and 29 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITIEE Page 2 h_stcomrep_23_022 
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2015 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Political Subdivisions Committee 
Red River Room, State Capitol 

HB 1 21 7  
4/2/201 5  

Job Number 25770 

D Subcommittee 
D Conference Committee 

Committee Clerk Signature 

Explanation or reason for introd uction of bi l l/resolution :  

Relating to the rental of a dwelling to a victim of domestic violence 

M i n utes: Written testimony # 1 Rep. Lois Delmore 
Written testimony # 2 Janelle Moos 
Written testimony # 3 Rocky Gordon 
Written testimony # 4 Jeremy Petron 
Written testimon # 4b Gre Thom son 

Chairman Burckhard opened the committee for HB 1 2 1 7. All senators were present. 

Rep. Lois Delmore here today to urge your favorable consideration for HB 1 21 7 . It relates 
to the rental of a dwelling to victims of domestic violence. The bill increases the protections 
and provides vict ims of domestic violence important safeguards in emergency or potentially 
dangerous situations. Sometimes these victims have a hard time finding housing because 
of the need to call police protection or because the batterer has caused a disturbance. 
Sometimes they also need to terminate a lease for those same reasons. Subsection 3,  of 
section 3,  of the bil l  bans discrimination against victims in state housing programs only. The 
amended Section 2 of subsection 2;  expands the acceptable forms of documentation 
beyond a protection order or order prohibiting contact that a victim may use when 
requesting termination of their lease. There are others here to testify who can better 
describe provisions of the bi l l  and the needs for its passage. I would urge you favorable 
consideration of H B 1 2 1 7. (Written testimony # 1). 

Senator Bekkedahl I am reading on page 2, lines 6-26, and that section specifically deals 
with if I have these issues I am I fear of staying in the staying in the same residence 
because I may be inviting attendance by the party that has already done harm to me or my 
children. Is this the section that allows them to get out the lease? Is that what I am read ing 
there? 

Rep. Delmore Yes it does. It is very similar to the provisions of HB 1 2 1 2  which we also 
passed that al lows victims of domestic violence, stalking, etc. to be eligible for workers 
compensation, no the unemployment compensation. So, that l ist was taken from there 
because it was felt that it was pretty credible substantiation that you would have to provide. 
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Senator Anderson When I first read this bill, of course I didn't see much problem with it, 
but since then people have contacted me with concerns that this is another excuse for 
people to get out of their lease that they've already signed and are looking now to vacate 
for whatever reason. Can you speak to that a little bit? 

Rep. Delmore I certainly can. I see these as pretty solid character witnesses and 
documentation that you would need to get out of a lease. I think that all bil ls we pass are 
subject to someone taking advantage of them but I don't think that is a reason not to pass 
this bill to protect those victims of domestic violence who may really need to get out of that 
lease and leave immediately for their own safety and sometimes for the safety of their 
children. Like I said it was the same amendment that we put on the bill for unemployment 
compensation and I think the members of the committee and the members of both 
chambers thought that it was a pretty comprehensive list. 

Senator Judy Lee Just looking at what the 1000 version was, the definition of domestic 
violence was eliminated and perhaps it is elsewhere in that section so, we don't need it. 
Maybe you could comment on that? Then the very last thing was the tenant who was a 
victim of domestic violence may request that the landlord rep lace the door locks on the 
units occupied by the victim without any cost to the victim. That was deleted as well. Would 
you just let us know about that p lease? 

Rep. Delmore I am not exactly sure. I don't think the locks would be a huge thing because I 
don't think we've see massive numbers of domestic violence people leaving apartments 
every day. But I believe that was an objection so, it was taken out of the bill and the other 
section. I believe domestic violence is in another section of code. 

Janelle Moos Executive Director, of the CAWS of North Dakota (Written testimony# 2). 
(6:12-10:32) 

Chairman Bu rckhard This is an email message I got from a constituent who was 
obviously a landlord. " A lease is a binding contract. Abuse victims can get a protection 
order to release them from the lease. Let's try and protect the landlord for once". What do 
you say to that kind of comment? 

Janelle Moos It takes a lot for a victim to even go into one of our crisis centers let alone to 
go through the protection on a process to say that they need to have the court intervene in 
whatever that relationship is, so I don't think. We often get a lot of criticism that protection 
orders are handed out like candy. They are actually not, they are very difficult to obtain and 
in some jurisdictions there are incredibly difficult to obtain because judges look at what the 
most recent incident is, and they want to see documentation that is potentially lethal and it's 
in the immediate. So I think for a victim to even take a step forward to get help  from our 
crisis center let alone going to the court system is a big step for them in general. It's not that 
we're trying to tell the land lords that they are doing anything wrong; I think this just gives 
victims an opportunity to get out of a lease if they need too. 

Senator Grabinger Isn't this with the changing of the locks, isn't this the same bill that we 
saw in Judiciary last session? We had testimony regarding those locks. 
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Janel le Moos It is s imi lar. The lock prov1s1on from the last session was much more 
expansive. This was really narrowed in focus, but, again we felt it was just too steep of a h i l l  
to c l imb in  terms of the opposition we faced from the apartment association .  

Senator Grabinger That took care of their arguments? Janelle Moos As far as  I know I 
d idn't hear any complaints. I mean there are folks in the room today, but I th ink Rep. 
Overson was the one that worked on the amendments and I assume she had interacted 
with them about the changes she had made. 

Senator Judy Lee Do you have any idea about how many times a year there might be a 
tenant who has been a victim who requests an early d ismissal or release I should say from 
a lease? 

Janel le Moos We don't track those statistics. I could ask our programs but we don't track 
that. Senator Judy Lee I just thought you might have that information so that we could 
figure out how much we are talking 6 in 600 I know that is not 600. Janelle Moos I don't 
th ink it's very h igh .  

Rocky Gordon (14:17-18:00) Lobbyist for the North Dakota Apartment Association .  
(Written testimony# 3 )  We oppose HS 1217. Senator Judy Lee had a question about how 
many times and I don't pretend to have the answer to that, but in the House hearing we had 
one of our attorney's from Fargo and she said she was aware of about 50 of these in the 
Fargo area. I don't know if that is helpful or not, but that is the best information I have on 
that. It would have been the last two years.  

Senator Dotzenrod I f  it's true that if  on the termination of the request that the lease be 
terminated if  the renter is  obligated then to pay out the fees for that month that they are in ,  
and then they m ight even be a deposit that they may have to g ive up or. Aren't the 
landlords more or less covered by those provisions? 

Rocky Gordon In some cases yes, some cases not. I don't think it would go very wel l  if a 
land lord held a tenants deposit because they did this. I can't envision land lords do that. 
Does it cal l  for the current month and one more month , yes it does. But if you go in and 
sign a 12 month lease as a resident, you get rent protections for those 12 months. But 
real ly if you can terminate by g iving an extra 30 day notice, it kind of destroys the concept 
of the lease. I also wanted to say that wel l  we recognize that the supply of housing has 
been very tight in the state of North Dakota, I don't know if many of you have d riven around 
B ismarck i n  your  stay here ,  there are a ton of apartments coming on the market and that 
t ight s ituation is going away very rapid ly due to a bunch more supply coming on the market. 
So, I hope that we don't say, ' wel l  if you get an extra month's rent you can re-rent the 
apartment anyway' , that is probably not going to be true even today. But as we go forward 
in these markets where more supply is added. 

Senator Judy Lee I wondered if we could ask Femi to get the section of statute that talks 
about what the current process is if somebody terminates a lease if the Chairman was 
wi l l ing .  

Chairman Burckhard I am wil l ing to have Femi do the work, for the research . 
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Senator Anderson On page 2 ,  starting with subsection 2 ,  on l ine 1 1 ,  it looks to me l ike the 
old language provided for the judge to issue a court order and then the person cou ld come 
in and say I need to get out of this lease because and here is my court order. Now what 
we're doing here is add ing a bunch of other options for people to get out of their lease 
where before they needed the court order and then they were out, right? 

Rocky Gordon That is correct. Our position is that in order to terminate a lease, there has 
to be some impartial review other than, wel l ,  I am going to have my attorney sign an 
affidavit. You pay your  attorney to sign an affidavit or I am going to go to my clergy and ask 
them to sign an affidavit. I can't imagine that they are going to say no. That is the problem 
with this. It's not that we d isagree that there should be an out, but I think we kind of took a 
one s ize fits a l l  approach to this. It worked for something else so it should work here too. 
But we view it as a b ig d ifference between what was done there and terminating a legally 
bind ing lease, if we agree that they are legally binding . 

Senator Dotzenrod This affidavit that you're concerned about that you could just h i re an 
attorney it appears to me reading this that, that affidavit has to specifical ly identify the name 
of the person that they are worried about. It seems to me that wouldn't be a casual exercise 
I wouldn't think. That is real ly so of formalizing and putting down in writing something that if 
it was an untrue statement or if was just made up,  would be something that would 
considered a pretty serious matter. So I think that you would either have to be to my way of 
thinking something legitimate here that was going on,  because I think you could h ire 
attorneys to sign and perform work and they get paid by the hour so, but I sti l l  think that if 
you're going to specifical ly identify by name another person and say in that document that 
your fearfu l ,  I th ink that there is kind of a barrier their or a bar that would have to be met. I 
j ust don't know if you could get it attorneys to casually sign these when they specifically are 
referring to another person by name. I think that there is a l ittle more to it than just a fai rly 
simple matter of s igning an affidavit. I don't know if you want to answer to that or not. 

Rocky Gordon I wou ld .  I 've been doing this for 37 years. I've seen lots of things in 37 
years and we don't have enough time for the rest of the session to talk about those things. 
But what I would say is I agree with you to a point, but the question becomes and th is is 
why we ask for an impartial review. At what point does it rise to the level of imminent fear 
and who makes that judgment? Wel l  we th ink an impartial party needs to make that 
judgment. Maybe I d idn 't speak properly, I don't think peop le are going to haphazardly do 
this and sign them. But there is a real question about at what point should this law take 
effect. We belong to a land lord program with the police department and we get reports of 
every time there is a police cal l  on our property. We get them every Monday morn ing .  
There are a lot of domestic cal ls .  There are police reports, but, some people unfortunately 
we see them month after month after month . Those don't rise to the level that we bel ieve 
would trigger this s ituation where a tenant cou ld terminate their lease. That is our concern 
is at what point is there agreement that there is fear, there's imminent danger, somebody 
has to make that determination.  Should that be your attorney, should that be your clergy, 
we don't think so. 

Senator Bekkedahl You walk a fine l ine here and I appreciate that because this is a 
serious issue for a l l  of us. It appears to me that what's then provided here is an attempt to 
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error on the s ide of caution .  There have probably been instances I can't s ite them, where 
there has been a fear of imminent danger placed on a victim .  It hasn't been properly 
protected through the courts by an order yet, and something more serious has happened 
and that is just a statement I would make that I th ink and maybe there are others here that 
could testify more to th is .  I think we are trying to error on the side of caution in support of 
the victims to make sure something worse doesn't happen but if you care to answer that 
question. I am just stating what I see happening here. 

Rocky Gordon I can't d isagree with that. I don't know but then you get into wel l ,  how far 
should error on the side of caution go. We think this goes a l ittle further than is reasonable. 
I guess that is  our point. Again,  we fu l ly understand there are situations where yes th is 
needs to happen.  We get that. I had one of my best friends in the world g rew up in a home 
where there was lots of domestic violence in the 1960's. I get it. They have scars today. 
Unfortunately what had to happen there is what happened in many of those cases in the 50 
and 60's. It went on unti l  the boys got old enough to put a stop to it. Wel l  that's not what 
should take place. It is j ust how far do we go? 

Senator Judy Lee I am looking at the one and maybe this is one from his most answer. 
But, on page 2, l ine 1 8 , it talks about the tenant bring ing a medical record ind icating 
domestic violence and sexual assault. Wel l  medical records are prohibited by H IPPA from 
being shared with anybody, pretty much unless it is another provider or appropriate 
ind ividual .  So, you can't request them, it seems to me, do you have a comment on the 
medical record part. I know that is new. 

Rocky Gordon I know that we can't request them. I think the victim can request them and 
then they could bring them to us. But then you get into th ings is it current, how old can it be 
and this law sti l l  would a llow them to be released . I know it's not a perfect world but that's 
not perfect either. 

Senator Judy Lee So then at some point I wou ld l ike Ms. Moos to answer that question as 
wel l  as Mr. Gordon.  

Senator Bekkedahl I deal with H I PPA myself in my practice as wel l  as wel l  as in  the 
mi l itary side command ing a med ic un it. Ms. Moos can answer this question but I bel ieve if I 
am the person requesting my med ical record if I want too or if they can be released to me. I 
can make them publ ic to, whoever, I want to at some point, if I am the person whose 
med ical records they belong too. But ,  there may be something d ifferent than Janelle Moos 
could bring into that situation.  

Senator Judy Lee I am going to ask forgiveness instead of permission here by say that if  I 
was a victim of domestic violence I might have photographs showing a woman had been 
pistol whipped by her boyfriend and photographs came into the court showing terrible 
bru ises. He could bring bru ises and the landlord would say, wel l  as long as you can tel l  me 
it was your partner. The judge said to the offender at the time, next time don't hit her so 
hard ,  so the next time he used the back of the heel of his cowboy boots the leather part 
because that wasn't sharp and d idn't have the same bru ises in  place. We've come a ways 
from that, but that happened . So, if I were assau lted and I wasn't just beaten and if there 
was a rape involved , if there was any kind of thing that required med ical records that would 
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be of a great deal more personal  nature or photographs of body parts that were affected by 
this domestic abuse, I don't think that a medica l  records should have to be released in 
order to provide that k ind of demonstration .  I am not trying to be paranoid about medical 
records, but Senator Anderson and I spend a lot of time talking about H I PPA. 

Senator Grabi nger I was just going to say in  response to that i t  looks to me l ike it  just can 
be used if the victim wants to use that. It is not something they need to use. 

Senator Anderson Perhaps Mr. Gordon can respond to this a l ittle b it, but many of these 
cases are not as simple as Senator Lee points out. Somebody hurts somebody and they 
have bruises and whatever. (Example cited) I th ink this was one of the reasons the lock 
deal was changed. Many of these cases if it just this simple we would just cut them off and 
say, we're not going to see you anymore. But most of them before that happens have been 
in and out of this relationship several times. 

Rocky Gordon That is correct. You have to a lso recogn ize the position that the landlord is 
in  this. In these cases you have two people signed to a lease, and one of them says I want 
a key. Do we have the right to deny them on the surface of it? We don't, so then we get into 
the position of who do we bel ieve risking being sued from somebody that we denied access 
to their apartment, or do we take that risk or do we try to make that decision? It is a tough 
one sometimes, and the s ituation that you described happens often .  

Chairman Burckhard i t  i s  tough to be  in the midd le. 

Senator Anderson Your  contention is then when th is issue comes before the judge, the 
judge can make those decisions and then it protects you . If you don't g ive them the key, 
lets you g ive them it and the judge says yes and then a l l  those th ings are taken care of on 
the court. 

Rocky Gordon That is correct that is why we ask for an impartial review because you 
know some of these. I sti l l  bel ieve that I know and responded to Sen. Dotzenrod' question 
but are people just going to wholesale sign these th i ngs. Wel l  no they are not. But it's a 
question of degrees. Is what took place to the point where this section of the law, should 
apply and should we be put into a position of making that decision. We don't want to make 
that decision. 

Senator Bekkedahl My concern that has come up in l istening to this is the current statute 
that ta lks about protection order after a hearing proh ibiting contact. I don't know how it 
works in domestic violence cases or these fear cases but our d istrict court i n  the Northwest 
district, Wil l iston currently, has been reduced from Minot, Wil l iston al l  being combined into 
one d istrict; to now just a three county d istrict out of Wil l iston .  They've added two judges in  
the last session and their sti l l  currently short 2 .  7 judges for that smal l  d istrict because of the 
case load . The chief judge up in that area tel ls me these types of d isputes are now being 
schedu led in  the calendar into 201 7. It is a year and half to get a d ivorce hearing before 
h im in  our court system up there .  I am a l ittle b it concerned that if that is what is going on 
and maybe these are hand led d ifferently, are these court hearings exped ited for the safety 
of the victims and that would be my concern . 
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Rocky Gordon We believe they are ,  but I wou ldn't be in a position to g ive you any 
statistics. One of the things and we've spent a lot of time thinking about th is. It is a real 
major concern to us and we were qu ite surprised at what the House of Representatives d id ,  
we d idn't th ink that we had communicated our concerns perhaps better than we d id .  We've 
had our attorneys work on this and one of the things we might offer as sort of a 
compromise that my understand ing from our attorney's is that attorney's wi l l  issue these 
orders ex parte in other words there doesn't have to be a hearing . Before the order is 
issued , we have concerns about that as wel l  but we l ike that better than the clergy and the 
attorney th ing just saying ,  if they get an ex parte order or a no contact order, at least there's 
been something. There has at least been a cursory look and somebody says yes. 
Sometimes these are l ifted and sometimes they are made permanent. That was our original 
th inking of why they are needed to be a hearing.  I th ink at least there would be someth ing , 
some jud icial process started and so on,  and I th ink those can be issued pretty fast I th ink.  

Senator Anderson When you say our attorney's do you mean the state's attorney? 
Rocky Gordon No,  sir our association attorney. 

Senator Anderson So they wou ld review the case and then issue the order, is that how it 
goes? 

Rocky Gordon No the judge would review it but he issues an ex parte order which means 
there hasn't been a hearing.  He just signs and says here's the protection order. Again,  
sometimes they get l ifted . They look at them and say no, there's no reason .  But at least 
there is someth ing there that kind of takes us out of the position of does it rise to the level 
or not. The judge looks at it and apparently it convinced him at least on the surface that 
there was a big enough that it rose to the level that someth ing needs to happen. We get 
that. 

Senator Judy Lee I j ust thought of something entirely separate from domestic violence and 
that is on page 2 ,  l ine 1 &2, I thought this was i l legal . It says, "nothing in  this chapter 
prevents a person from refusing to rent a dwel l ing to two unrelated ind ividuals of opposite 
gender who are not married to each other". I d idn't th ink we could d iscriminate on the basis 
of marita l status in  North Dakota , un less it's in the basement of your own home or in  a 4 
p lex or smal ler in  which you l ive. Is  that part of regulation 32, from the feds? 

Rocky Gordon I bel ieve that it is and I th ink the reason it was in  there is they didn't want to 
enter into a d iscussion of the basement or 4- un it or someth ing l ike that. 

Senator Judy Lee Wel l  this is old language, but I don't even think it is legal anymore. I just 
thought I would throw that out to compl icate the situation. 

Rocky Gordon I th ink it is in  certain s ituations and I think that is why they said "Not 
withstanding",  just so that wasn't brought into th is, would be my understanding. 

Jeremy Petron North Dakota Apartment Association (40:20-42:33 ) written testimony# 4 .  

Chairman Bu rckhard You said the 2nd page was whose? Jeremy Petron The 2nd page is 
testimony d i rectly from G reg Thompson, our attorney. 
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Senator Dotzenrod You're suggesting that some of the requirements that are in this b i l l  
are actually fairly not that d ifficult to obtain they even could be old. So, you're feel ing that 
we could not go that way, but instead just have a requirement for I think your testimony 
here says, ' a protection order ' and maybe that was it. Are there any of these things that 
you would put in place of what is in this b i l l ,  things that could be obtained on short notice? It 
looks to me l ike what you're proposing would be things that would be d ifficult to get on short 
notice. Am I wrong about that? 

Jeremy Petron I am not suggesting other aspects other than the testimony from our 
attorney that looked at this further on the time frame. I think that was the most concern of 
how to expedite process for a true victim of domestic violence. H is suggestion was the ex 
parte part from the judge where that can be obtained with in a few days, but then the 
hearing is scheduled for later. That was h is suggestion on it. 

Senator Dotzenrod I am th inking about a case where some renter comes to you and says 
you know I have to be out of here right away. I 've got to get out of here there's some worry 
about the kids and myself so I'm leaving.  Regard less of whether you let me out of my lease 
or not I sense that someth ing is real ly dangerous here, so I am leaving. So, I guess if they 
leave you're going to expect whether they are there or not, that there are going to have 
keep paying the rent even if they aren't there. Is that what you're saying? 

Jeremy Petron What we are asking for is just an impartial neutral party in  this case. The 
judge and the protection order in  order to make that lease void . So, we don't want to be put 
in the tough position as Rocky spoke to before, who do we believe in this s ituation . But, in 
order to make that lease void ,  if it is in  fact a legal binding contract, but at the same point, 
we feel that the l ist as I described on page 2, l ines 1 5-26 that there is not impartialness in 
that respect as far as having a counselor or clergy or even an attorney sign those affidavits . 

Senator Anderson I n  response I guess a l ittle bit to Senator Grabinger's question, if there 
is exist ant emergency here they leave their apartment, they have 2 months real ly. The 
current month plus the next month and they have to continue to pay regard less. So that 
seems to me l ike that ought to be plenty of time to go to the court and say I would l ike to 
have adjudicate this matter here and then get out of my lease. It is not l ike their stuck i n  
that apartment because now they can't leave. They are going to have to pay the rent 
regard less of whether they leave today or leave in 2 months. It is just that month and a half 
or whatever it is ,  that they have to pay anyway. Now the judge may decide to let them out 
of that or he may talk to the land lord and say you can rent this and then once you've rented 
it they don't have to pay anymore. So, that could happen too. They might be able to avoid 
paying even that month rent if the land lord can re-rent it. But the point here is, that g ives 
them time and they are sti l l  paying anyway, and they are out of the exigent ant s ituation 
and they can go to the judge or the court and get the order. Wouldn't you agree with that? 

Jeremy Petron you took the words right out of my mouth . 

Senator Judy Lee I am going to correct what I said because it turns out that marital status 
is not a federal ly protected category under federal law. Publ ic housing is an exception , 
publ ic housing does have that. But otherwise the Federa l  Fair Housing prohib its 
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d iscrimination of race or color, rel ig ion,  natural orig in ,  gender, fami l ial status having ch i ldren 
and pregnancy and physical and mental d isabil ities. So I wanted to correct what I had said . 

Senator Dotzenrod I would l ike to ask Janelle Moos to respond to this idea that if there's a 
person , a s ingle Mom and she has a partner and the partner has been a domestic d ifficulty 
in that person ,  really feels threatened , and they need to leave and they tel l  the land lord I 
am leaving now, in  the am I am going to be gone. So, they sti l l  have their obligation to pay 
remainder of that months' rent plus one more,  so, what we've heard this morning is that 
g ives them enough time so they can get the judges' order or ex parte rul ing and so they feel 
that the person asked to leave has enough time so that the law protects them and they can 
get out of that lease. Is that your  understanding of how this would work and they real ly 
would have plenty of time to work this out and get their protection so they would be out the 
lease under current law? 

Janel le Moos Yes,  I bel ieve that would al low them the time to get the documentation that 
they would need . Several of the things that were talked about today, so in terms of the 
protection order process, if you come in to one of our centers and request the court and 
receive the paperwork on your  own. But you fi l l  out the paperwork to request a temporary 
protection ord er, there has to be a hearing with in 1 4  days for a permanent protection order 
and at that point in time the judge has a hearing where both the victim is there, the offender 
is there ,  they go through al l  the affidavits and they actually make the decision whether or 
not there wil l be a permanent protection order g iven to the victim at that point in time or 
they could d ismiss it a ltogether. So, they get the temporary order and they've 1 4  days to 
appear in front of the judge and then he makes the decision whether or not that order wi l l  
stand. They can order that up to 2 year periods where they' l l  g ive protection order. Senator 
Anderson in terms of your  scenario in terms of your wife spending a l l  your money and you 
changing the locks, if you look at l ine 6,  it talks about how victims of domestic violence are 
defined under Chapter 1 4  which is the domestic Violence statute, so the statute talks about 
what it is.  It is physical harm ,  bodi ly injury, sexual activity compel led by physical force, fau lt, 
. inflection of fear, imminent physical ,  so it outl ines what domestic violence is. So, a victim 
actually has to come i n  e ither the court or if they call 91 1 ,  this is how the judgment is made 
whether or not someone is a victim .  So I don't think land lords are put in  a position to decide 
who a true victim is, or who should they bel ieve in this s ituation? If they meet what's in  
statute about what is domestic violence victim i t  is outl ined very specifical ly who is and who 
isn't a victim .  I think that protects in those situations that Senator Anderson brought up and 
then Senator Lee in terms of whether or not a victim wants to provide copies of their 
medical records .  That is just an option,  and I would think that would probably one of the 
lowest options that someone would select to provide for documentation to get out of the 
lease. Someone may p rovide that if they want to apply for unemployment compensation , 
but I don't know if someone wi l l  release that. So I th ink it is up to them . It clearly states that 
someone, a tenant can provide it, it's not requested by the landlord .  It is something that 
someone cou ld have access too, and provide as documentation .  

Senator Anderson So the only time real ly that I need to go to my minister and get th is 
affidavit would be if I forgot to ask the judge to address my lease situation when I was 
before h im within 1 4  days after I made the complaint. 
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Janelle Moos When you go in for a protection order you're asking for relief from the court. 
Say for example you've been physical ly assau lted that night and you need to have 
someone removed from a p lace where you both reside in .  You actual ly have to 
demonstrate that imminent fear or that there's been some physical or most recent event 
that has occurred. Again ,  the judges look pretty critically at what's written in an affidavit 
when a victim comes in fi l ls out the protection order paperwork. 

Senator Anderson I should also ask the judge at that time, about my lease. 

Janelle Moos You can ask the judge to have someone removed from your property and 
maybe it is a property that you share under the lease. The judge is pretty critical of the 
affidavits especial ly in  s ituations where there could be imminent fear of someone being 
physical ly assaulted . So I think the final point is when you look at the original draft of the 
version of what it, the b i l l  orig inal ly took out al l  required documentation , either the order 
prohibiting contact or the protection order. What we tried to do on the House side was to 
g ive back some form of documentation. If we are worried about being in the m iddle of this, 
then,  whom do you bel ieve, who's the victim , and who's not a victim? It is such a neutral 3rd 

party. A court order, a protection order, a restraining order or other court record filed with 
the court under l ine 1 5, a pol ice or law enforcement record ; those are neutral 3rd party. So if 
you're at the point and time when you have to call 91 1 ,  because you're being physical ly 
assaulted and you need someone to intervene in that s ituation , law enforcement responds 
as the neutral party. They are going to come in to the situation ,  and ask who is the 
defender who is the victim ,  they are trained to come in and look at who's been physical ly 
assau lted , who may have acted in  self-defense. We've got years and years of experience in 
terms of how law enforcement do their jobs. Those are real ly, if you look at the neutral 3rd 

parties. I guess it's up to the committee, and we are happy to work with you in terms of 
amendments if you feel they are necessary. But I th ink there is enough in  what is in  current 
statute, and then what is in the bi l l  d raft to protect against these l ines of victims that may 
show up and say I am victim and I want out of my lease. I mean it's really not something I 
see people using and again it's real ly cost prohibited . Who has one month's rent and 
another month's rent just lying around? There is not a lot of people that have access to 
resources l ike that, so I think it's not someth ing we're going to run into a lot of problems 
with . 

Senator Bekkedahl Just so that I understand the situation. If I was a victim of domestic 
abuse, I have the opportunity then to go then to the Clerk of Court and fi le something about 
domestic abuse. Is that what you're saying? I am trying to figure out how that happens pre 
or the ex-parte. I can go to the shelter and get assistance there in  fi l ing the correct 
paperwork. I can go to the C lerk of Court; I can go to the pol ice .  Basically that is my three 
options to seek relief from the court at this point? 

Janelle Moos In terms of a protection order yes. You can come in to our crisis centers to 
receive one. You could actually download the form on l ine through the Supreme Court. If 
you want to fi l l  out the paperwork on your own , you can do that. You can a lso get one 
through the State's Attorney's office, through the Victim Witness Coord inator so there is 
several ways you can fi l l  out paperwork. 
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Senator Bekkedahl Do any of those avenues that I pursue would requ i re something for the 
courts to respond to, you're saying,  with in 1 4  days for a hearing? 

Janel le Moos Yes that is correct. Fil l out the temporary paperwork and then you have to 
bri ng it to the clerk of court who signs off on it and then g ives it to the judge and then the 
judge has to schedule a hearing with in  1 4  days to actual ly review what is in the affidavit of 
the temporary order, in order to decide whether or not the case wi l l  be d ismissed , or if 
you're going to get the permanent protection order. 

Senator Bekkedahl So can you explain then the ex parte document that has been brought 
up today and how that would or could not work in this s ituation? 

Janel le Moos That is what the temporary order is cal led . It is an ex parte protection order 
so you receive it and then you have to have it with in  1 4  days. So that is the same thing . 
Temporary protection order is the same as an ex parte. 

Senator Bekkedahl So to just clarify then,  if I fi le the paperwork on the incident either 
through your assistance with domestic and child services, the pol ice department, or through 
the C lerk of Court, the ex parte or temporary restraining order or temporary order is issued 
at that time by the signature of the judge and then we go to the 1 4  day window for the 
protection . 

Janelle Moos Yes, that is correct. 

Chairman Burckhard closed the hearing on HB 1 21 7. 

Committee Discussion 

Senator Anderson I am wil l ing to move the amendment in the last paragraph on the 
testimony from Greg Thompson . I am going to move that we insert that as alternate 
language in there ,  after, on page 2 ,  2(A) and 2(A}4, 2(A) and so forth , instead of that long 

l ist of things down below under 2A, we' l l  just use that. 

Chairman Burckhard It is the paragraph that starts out "The North Dakota Apartment 
Association wou ld agree to compromise by deleting subsections 2(a) through 2(a)(4) but 
amending subsection 2(a) to delete the words "after a hearing". 

Senator Anderson We won't put that language in there ,  but we wil l  say we wil l  delete 
subsections 2 (a) , 2(a)4) , 2(a) and then after a hearing then we wil l  put in that language 
that says , " obtain ing an ex parte protection order and no contact order" instead of 
happening to have the hearing under that 2(a) now. 

Chairman Burckhard Are we clear on this with what's going on here? So were going to 
insert on page 2 ,  around the l ine 1 3, the last contents of the last paragraph of Greg 
Thompson's testimony, he didn't testify today but he d id send this with one of those in 
opposition to the b i l l .  So we have a motion . Is  there a 2"d? 

2"d Senator Judy Lee 
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Chairman Burckhard There is a motion and a second to amend HB 1 2 1 7. 

Discussion 

Senator Dotzenrod I am reading the bottom of this handout here,  it says, " to delete the 
words after a hearing" that would be on l ine 1 3? 

Chairman Burckhard Correct. 

Senator Dotzenrod Is  there an assumption here that the overstrike that is on that l ine, is 
removed? 

Senator Judy Lee Yes,  removed the overstrike. 

Senator Anderson Yes that should be part of our amendment. 

Senator Dotzenrod Yes, because I was looking for remove the overstrike and I d idn't see 
that. 

Senator Judy Lee We d idn 't write it that way. 

Senator Dotzenrod So, you say you delete. So then the sentence wou ld read , " the tenant 
fears imminent domestic violence from a person named in a protection order under section , 
then the numbers ,  or an order prohibiting contacting "the". 

Senator Judy Lee I don't th ink so. I th ink it is "The tenant fears imminent domestic 
violence from a person named in a, actual ly it doesn't make sense. 

Senator Anderson Actual ly what Femi wou ld do would say, " will remove the overstrike of 
'a protection order' and leave the overstrike where it says "after a hearing" and then say, 
under section 1 4 :07 . 1 02 or an order prohibiting 

Chairman Burckhard ' the contact', or contact the . . . 

Senator Grabinger Prohibiting contact period . 

Senator Dotzenrod I th ink they want to leave l ines 1 5  & 1 6 . 
Senator Anderson And then you're leaving l ines 27-28. 

Chairman Burckhard What about l ines 1 5  & 1 6  in  there as wel l? 

Senator Anderson I think that is out. Senator Judy Lee That's out. 

Senator Judy Lee No, 1 5  & 1 6  are in .  

Chairman Burckhard ' a court order, protection order, restrain ing order, or other record 
filed with the court' .  That would stay in .  Then it goes, 2(a)2- 2(a)4 . 

Senator Judy Lee So 1 7  through 26 would be out. 
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Senator Dotzenrod So, real ly the way those numbers are arranged on 1 ,2 ,3 ,  & 4 there on 
1 5- 1 9 ,  those numbers,  he wants to leave 1 5  & 1 6  which has a one in front of it; but that is 
the only one he is leaving ,  so there is real ly no point in it. The sentence would have to 
change so that one wou ldn't be there .  

Chairman Burckhard Right. Senator Judy Lee Why don't we let Femi fix it? Senator 
Dotzen rod Yes, that's what I am thinking. That is the idea of the amendment. 

Senator G rabinger It is basically removing l i nes 1 7-26, period . Senator Judy Lee Yes. 

Senator Bekkedahl Do we need to in the language in one, then have maybe it's already in 
there, but would we need to say a court order, protection order, restra in ing order, ex parte 
protection order or other record fi led? Because you mentioned ex parte and I don't know if 
that's in p lace a lready under a court order or protection order? 

Senator Judy Lee He says to delete the words "after a hearing" that wou ld al low the 
person who actual ly fears imminent domestic violence to terminate a lease by obtaining an 
ex parte protection order or no contact order. So, if we actual ly delete the words "after a 
hearing" then the hearing doesn't have to take place before that happens. You see the last 
sentence of. 

Chai rman Burckhard Is that after hearing on l ine 1 5? Senator Judy Lee Is that Mr. 
Thompson's message? Senator Anderson The idea is that the hearing does occur. 
Senator Judy Lee No Senator Anderson Yes , but it doesn't have to be as the previous 
language ind icated , after a hearing,  protection order, we've taken out after a hearing your  
right. 

Chairman Burckhard Femi ,  are you as clear as you should be on this motion? 
Femi I am not and the reason I am not is because when I read ing 'A' and from a person 
named in a protection order under section 1 4-07. 1 02 ,  or an order prohib iting contact and 
then goes ' a court order' ' a protection order' that sentence goes into what that would may 
so I don't know exactly. Chairman Burckhard Can we blend it in with that previous 
sentence and not number it number 1? Senator Judy Lee what about the accurate to say 
that the goal here is to make sure that they can get the immediate order in that 1 4  day 
period that was mentioned . It just takes a long time to get the permanent order, is that kind 
of where we are headed? 

Senator Dotzenrod I th ink so. I was going to suggest that after those numbers are on l ine 
1 3 , that 1 4 ,  7 ,  2 ,  then you've got the word 'or' , and then after the word or, you go down to 
l ine 1 5, a court order, protection order, restrain ing order. Just so you wou ld have A,B C 
under number 2 .  There wou ld be no 1 ,  2 ,  3 ,  4, just be A&B&C. 

Senator Judy Lee Another couple of episode of Law and Order and you wi l l  have your law 
degree. 

Chairman Burckhard Do you see what we are doing there? 

Chairman Burckhard It was moved and 2nd to amend HB 1 2 1 7 . Any other d iscussion? 
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Senator Dotzenrod I think I wi l l  visit with Femi afterwards, but, I don't th ink that it would 
hurt for us to say ex parte in that court order, protection order, restrain ing order, ex parte 
order or any other record . I th ink that that is inclusive and it is probably okay to say that. 

Chairman Burckhard We are going to vote on this amendment. 
Roll call vote 
6-0-0 
Chairman Burckhard Amendment passes 

Chairman Burckhard 
Senator Anderson I wil l  move do pass as amended on Engrossed HB 1 2 1 7  
2nd Senator Judy Lee 
Roll Cal l  vote 
6-0-0 

Senator Dotzenrod I mean I th ink we did the right thing here . But it would have been n ice 
to have Janelle Moos here ,  because the thing I was thinking about is, it seems to me that 
by doing this and having those three choices there, that this sti l l .  I don't think we've taken 
anyth ing away, because the person who feels threatened wou ld sti l l  act in thei r  own best 
interests and the best interests of the kids to get out of that environment as soon as they 
can.  If they feel threatened they need to leave. Then going through a shelter or going to 
some friends' house or doing someth ing they cou ld start this process in a few days or get 
some advice and get that ex parte and I think the lease then would be under the terms of 
this language that we put in here. I think they would be out of a lease. But, d id you follow 
what the changes we were contemplating here? Wel l  what we're thinking of is. Janelle 
Moos I missed that part. 

Senator Anderson If you look at the second to the last paragraph there on the bottom,  it 
says. 

Chairman Burckhard Senator Dotzenrod are you volunteering to carry this bi l l? 

Senator G rabi nger I th ink that I can explain that amendment to Janel le Moos better than 
she can read it. 

Senator Dotzenrod We passed it and I th ink that my vote stands and I supported the 
amendments. But I want to make sure that the parties to this, as there was some 
d isagreement when they were in the room here. It does seem to me that we provided an 
avenue of safety for the person being threatened , and also al lowed a 3rd party or neutral 
party but I think the process it seems to me wou ld work here. The first people who feel 
threatened would be and have this way to get out of that lease and they provide for the 
safety of their fami ly. 

Chairman Burckhard ,  Senator Judy Lee I can carry if he doesn't want too. Senator 
Dotzenrod Well  this is, I guess I would prefer to have somebody else do it. Chairman 
Burckhard Senator Lee is that a yes.  Senator Judy Lee That is fine. 
Carrier: Senator Judy Lee 
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Page 2, line 12, remove the overstrike over "a" 
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D Subcommittee 
C8:I Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bi l l/resolution:  

Relating to the rental of a dwel l ing to a victim of domestic violence.  

M i n utes : 

Cha irman Hatlestad:  Opened conference committee on HB 1 2 1 7 .  

Senator Lee: We were looking at (using the Christmas tree version 1 002 page 2 )  our 
concerns in genera l  wh ich were on removing some of the other providers who were 
otherwise enable to provide the statement that they needed this kind of protection and on 
the original bi l l  there was a social worker, clergy, peer support g roup . . .  etc. We had a 
concern that these contacts could have al l  been gotten quickly and we had concerns about 
these other non-court related entities being able to provide a valif reason for someone. It 
isn't that hard to get that order and we had concerns about ti because even though they 
may be involved with counsel ing or social work or members of the clergy they aren't 
necessarily experts in the law and also they aren't a d isinterested aprty. This real ly needs 
to be someth ing that is brought to a d isinterested party (not un interested) that has the legal 
knowledge to recogn ize what meat fulfi l ls the requirements of the defin itions. We support 
making it possible for a person who is a victim of domestic violence to be able to rent 
without a delay. That is the thrust of what we were doing . 

Senator Grabinger: For instance the attorney cou ld possibly be a part to the ones asking for 
the order. They may be paying the attorney and they cou ld issue an order and that is the 
d iscussion we had . We have to be d iscretionary in what we do in the d isinterested party. 
The ta lk about the ex-party order, the temporary order, and the quickness that they can get 
that- we d iscussed that and the length of time for something to happen to get them out of 
this situation .  We found out that it can be accompl ished qu ickly. 

Chairman Hatlestad : Did they come up with a time frame in which this happens? 

Senator Lee: I can't remember exactly but it was around a day and that is someth ing we 
real ly ta lked about. 

Representative Becker: I was wondering if we needed a more specified or no defin ition for 
a l icense counci lor. 200 1 page 2 l i ne 21  
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Senator Grabinger: I think that is why we needed that out of there ,  because we couldn't 
define those things. If they were aware of how to do this they could get a temporary order 
and that would suffice for a l l  of it and any of them if they are aware of how to do this would 
lead them down the path to get to that order. 

Representative Oversen : The orig inal bi l l  removed the requirement for any type of official 
documentation .  It only required notice from the party to the land lord and there was 
contention with that so the language we inserted here (the 1-4 options) is out of the 
unemployment insurance code.  Currently for a victim of domestic violence who leaves thei r  
job because of the violence, this is the documentation they are al lowed to provide to be 
el ig ible for unemployment benefits. The language isn't new. We got it out of an existing 
code.  We opened it up beyond official courts and law enforcement relegated orders 
because not al l  victims of domestic violence seek those orders because it tends to lead to 
increased aggression from their abuser if they access the court or law enforcement. 
Al lowing them to go to a counselor or clergy makes it a l ittle more private and they don't 
have to name that party in  an official document. It wasn't the length of time to get these 
documents we were concerned about as much it was the safety of the victim and not 
having to go to the police. 

Senator Lee : I appreciate that. I don't see unemployment insurance claim being the same. 
Abuses happen and it is unfortunate. Recognizing the chal lenges of having been to tighten 
things up because people abuse them. The service animal and other therapy statutes have 
been abused . We want true services animals. Some of the others have a lot of g rey area 
and even with the idea that we want to make sure the victim doesn't suffer anymore,  
constitutional ly they have a write to see who is accusing them and who the accuser is .  
There is  a d ifference among the d ifferent types of counci lors .  Social workers by nature an 
empathetic group who wi l l  not necessari ly be d is interested counselors same th ing .  There 
are many d ifferent counselors and same with the clergy. I doubt any of them are going to 
sort out the facts the way they shou ld . That is where it came from-that someone has to 
l isten carefu lly and make sure the victim's rights are protected along with the accusers .  
That is  a grey area and I wish we didn't need a law l ike this. 

Representative Oversen :  I understand the need to have a d isinterested party and 
understand the need for a person to have their rights but we are trying to avoid bringing 
that person into a court of law because sometimes the victim doesn't want that. By going to 
the pol ice they are going to a court .  When a person is accused of a crime they have the 
right to know. If they are trying to get out of their lease because they are concerned about 
their safety that's d ifferent. I don't think it is a fair  person to compare a person who uses a 
service animal to someone trying to get out of their lease. If we al low and embrace this type 
of document for someone to receive a financial benefit from the state I don't this is any less 
cred ible for them to get out of a lease . 

Senator Burckhard : A landlord emailed me this "a lease is a binding contract. . .  abuse 
victims can get a protection order to release them from the rental lease . . .  " and then they 
asked that we should protect the land lord . We tried to simpl ify it. Can you talk to us about 
what is inadequate? What don't you l ike about this? 
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Representative Oversen : This isn't the language we dealt with . Who oversees the ex-party 
temporary protection order? I assume that is someone who goes to the court in some 
fashion . 

Senator Burckhard : Yes 

Representative Oversen : The reasoning behind eleim inating and expanding those options 
was so that they d idn't only have the option to go to the courts or go to law enforcement 
because that is the involvement of law enforcement or the jud icial system that tends to lead 
increased violence from the aggressor. I have happy to look up more information.  This 
came from individua ls at the law cl inic at UNO who often work with victims of domestic 
violence and housing situations. 

Senator Lee : I think people who work with victims of domestic violence are sympathetic to 
them . I am not sure if they would be neutral either. One person talked about there being 50 
requests in the Fargo area in the last two years. I d isagree with the fact that they cou ld be 
able to avoid the courts and change apartments. If they are real ly being threatened they 
should get a restrain ing order or move forward with th is and be encouraged by these folks if 
it is real ly this serious then someth ing has to be done other than moving to another 
apartment. All a person has to do is fol low the person home from work to figure out where 
they are l iving aga in .  There has to be some way to move the system forward a bit and 
getting that court order to step in doesn't always solve the problem . It seems to me that 
there is a benefit of being involved in the court level even if it is in a modest way so that 
there is prohibiting contact restrain ing order or other record fi led with the court. The people 
who are helping the ind ividual ,  somebody must have been helping them because they 
wou ld n't think on their own that they can go somewhere and get some consent or support 
form to declare to their  land lords.  Somewhere someone told them they could do that. 
Whoever is providing that information should also make sure that they know what the other 
services are that are avai lable and be supportive and move forward . We a l l  know that there 
is a recycl ing occurrence. How do we help them not repeat the cycle? Maybe there is a way 
to help them move forward . 

Chairman Hatlestad : We were looking at expanded options. If I look at law enforcement 
records that should be a pretty d isinterested party I would th ink which another th ing we 
need to consider is. I am not sure if we had that at the top of our l ist but it is something we 
need to consider. We need to balance the rights of the victim and the land lord and we need 
to be considerate of the everyone. There is a lot to consider and we should bring th is back 
next week. C losed the conference committee. 
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M i n utes : II Testimony 1 

Chairman Hatlestad :  Opened conference committee on H S  1 2 1 7. On Friday we talked 
about the importance of making the rights even, the abuse of the system , safety priority 
being an issue, and how quickly a court order cou ld be ach ieved . The key item was the 
d isinterested party and what could be done with that. We talked about the code of ethics 
and may need to rethink that. We agreed that we need a better defin ition of the people 
involved and hoped to expand the options. Senator Lee said we need to consider more 
than the move from the apartment. We also agreed that we need to d iscuss the 
d is interested party. 

Senator Burckhard :  It was suggested by me that it is a legal ly b inding contract and the time 
element is m isunderstood . The victim needs to take care of the situation but I don't th ink 
the lease needs to be terminated for them to do that. We have to consider that it  is a 
contract and it is not easy for the land lord either. 

Senator Lee : I agree with the senator Burckhard and an example was cited that the same 
criteria were used as a flyer for unemployment insurance but that is not breaking a contract. 
If the land lord was going to break the lease they have to go through a legal procedure to do 
that and it  is not mentioned in here that way. That court order part is important to me. 

Chairman Hatlestad:  So that is a major issue that needs to be resolved . We have an 
amendment that may help (attachment 1 ) . 

Representative Oversen : We were looking to ease the concerns that there is not a neutral 
party providing that evidence.  We looked at other options that were el iminated which 
included a law enforcement record and a med ical record and we d idn't think there was a 
concern that a law enforcement or a med ical record was going to be b iased- those records 
ind icate whatever was in front of them if they were cal led. With a written affidavit from the 
l isted ind ividuals (councilors ,  social worker, clergy etc . .  ) we inserted some language that 
requires that the affidavit does have objective supporting evidence so that it can't just be a 
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blanket statement saying this ind ividual is a victim of domestic violence. It does have to 
have supporting evidence.  

Senator Lee:  What version??? I th ink we should have th is  made off the newest version. 

Representative Oversen : We wil l have to work with whatever version it is but it goes after 
affidavit so it wi l l  read 'written affidavit contain ing objective support ing evidence provided by 
the individual who is assisted the tenant in deal ing with domestic violence' and then it l ists 
wh ich ind ividuals are al lowed to provide that affidavit. We also d iscussed the fact that al l  
these individ uals, the attorneys and social workers, are al l  bound by a code of ethics and I 
don't know where someone would falsify an affidavit. We thought insert ing that m ight help 
but are open to suggestions. 

Senator Lee: I th ink it is important we work off of 200 1 because that is the most recent. I 
have reservations off of that- I am not suggesting and never meant to that any of these 
professionals would fals ify something- I think the nature of their profession is that they are 
empathetic to the one they are counsel ing.  I think it needs to be a court order in  order to do 
that. Who decides whether a med ical order is reputable? 

Chairman Hatlestad:  So you sti l l  refuse this? 

Senator Burckhard : Can we have a recess for a couple minutes? 

Chairman Hatlestad:  We wil l  recess the meeting for a few minutes.  

Senator Burckhard : So a court order with ex-parte on how that reads ( l ine 1 5) 'a court 
order, ex-parte temporary protection order, order proh ibiting contact, restra in ing order, or 
other record fi led with a court' and then we could also agree to a pol ice or law enforcement 
record . 

Senator Grabinger: With the police and law enforcement record we may want to include 
some language showing what the record of a pol ice and law enforcement record is. That 
way we are encourag ing the victim to get help and not just break the lease. We want that 
person to get rid of the violence.  

Representative Becker: Along those l ines are you ind icating that the other 4 or  5 mentioned 
are off the record and the only one you are comfortable with is the pol ice or law 
enforcement with record defined? 

Senator Lee: and the court order. 

Senator Burckhard :  We are also interested in item 1 wh ich is court order, ex-parte 
temporary protection order, etc . . .  and then also item 2, l ine 24 a police or law enforcement 
record ind icating that there is someth ing about domestic violence.  

Senator Lee : Maybe we could use the phrase Representative Oversen had suggested that 
talks about the pol ice or law enforcement record "contain ing objective supporting 
evidence". I also ta lked with Ms. Moose on the way out and it is 72 hours for an ex-party 
order and 1 4  days for a permanent order. 
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Senator G rabinger: With the language that we are suggesting with the police or law 
enforcement record and using or your words "contain ing supportive evidence" that clearly 
al lows them if they go to the police they can get the supportive evidence they need to go 
a head . 

Chairman H atlestad : I am thinking we wil l  need another meeting . Conference committee is 
now recessed once again.  
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D Subcommittee 
� Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for i ntrod uction of bi l l/resolution:  

Relating to the rental of a dwel l ing to a victim of domestic violence.  

M i n utes : Testimon 1 

Chairman Hatlestad : Opened conference committee number three on HB 1 2 1 7 . We have 
another set of amendments for you to look at (attachment 1 ) .  

Senator Burckhard :  I am concerned about the med ical records portion sti l l . A medical record 
may l ist abuse was done throughout the exam but it won't contain the information about the 
suspect to justify why they can break a lease. The med ical people doing the exam won't do 
an investigation where as you do a police report it wi l l  include the suspects name and show 
cause. 

Senator Grabinger: What are we working off of? 

Chairman Hatlestad : 200 1 

Senator Grabinger: Does anyone else share that concern? That is my only issue. 

Senator Burckhard :  If I was a female victim would I want to use my med ical record? SI that 
something you want to share with someone? 

Representative Oversen :  Having not been in the situation I would certain ly bel ieve it to be 
uncomfortable but it may a lso be uncomfortable to enter in a protection order or a law 
enforcement record d isclosing your personal problems to your landlord .  There are 
protections in here that protect the confidential ity of that. The land lord isn't al lowed to show 
anyone unless it is for court proceed ings. There was the question about how do we know 
the ind ividual viewing that record wi l l  be able to assess whether or not it is domestic 
violence ind icated in that medical record . My experience in reviewing med ical records,  
wh ich is very l imited , there are atleast detai led enough that the person preparing the record 
is going to ind icate what the injury was and if the patient ind icated what caused it. If that is 
not on the record you won't have anything that ind icates domestic violence.  If they attribute 
it to someth ing else then that record doesn't ind icate domestic violence .  In  g iving them th is 



House Political Subdivisions Committee 
HB 1 21 7  
4/1 4/20 1 5  
Page 2 

option al lows them the opportunity to avoid going to the court. I know there is concern that 
we want to ensure that victims do access the courts and I agree we want to encourage that 
but we don't want to take their abi l ity to have that decision. Al lowing them to control how it 
plays out g ives them the power to decide what they want. That is my reason for expanding 
the options. 

Representative Burckhard :  I had a friend lose 38 apartments in  the flood . If he had a 
situation l ike this where he had an apartment that was usable sti l l  does the tenant pay rent 
in that time unti l  they find another renter? Do they continu ing paying rent unti l a renter is 
found? Does it s it vacant? 

Cha irman Hatlestad:  They pay the current and fol lowing month's rent. Potentia l ly I suppose 
the apartment cou ld sit empty. 

Senator Lee: I can't support the medical record one. I can imagine that the individual in th is 
s ituation would be uncomfortable sharing med ica l record with anybody but I can't imagine 
anyone wou ld be more comfortable sharing it with a land lord or a property manager than 
with a member of the court and so that won't work. In  visiting with some other folks about 
the police or law enforcement record , I am losing my support for that as wel l .  Pol ice records 
are not always very specific. There may be several in a weekend that come in for a property 
manager of a lot of d ifferent apartments so they are not always to the level that they need to 
be. There is a d ifferenciation in a matter of value judgement on whether or not it was at a 
level that real ly met the criteria .  We don't have any firm criteria about how they could get out 
of the lease. Th is is a legal b inding contract. Let's pretend it's a rea l-estate contract. Let's 
pretend the victim wanted to buy a house and now the perpetrator has found out where the 
house is. The victim doesn't get to get out of the purchase of the house when he/she has a 
legal contract. At the very least they wou ld lose their earnest money and cou ld be sued for a 
specific performance but he/she doesn't get to say I am a victim of domestic violence and 
my partner has found out where I want to l ive and so I don't want to buy it anymore.  That 
isn't how it works. This is a legal contract. If someone enters into anything other than a 
month to month rental s ituation,  which most of them are leases , are requ ired of abiding by 
the lease. If the land lord has provided safe, sound , and san itary environment in wh ich that 
ind ivid ual can l ive then the 72 hours that it takes to get an ex-parte order or 14 days it takes 
to get a permanent order, they can move out right now and get the order right away. They 
don't have to wait to move out to get the court order. It will take a while to get these other 
records acceptable to it. If I were the landlord or the property manager I would find it 
awkward to have to be the one who decides how much evidence is good supporting 
evidence. What level does this have to rise to or not to in order for this to be an acceptable 
level to say you have been abused bad ly enough.  Did he use something soft or hard to h it 
her? It won't show. The point is that you are talking to people, whose expertise is property 
management, not evaluating the course of injury here. The court order is where I am . 

Senator Grabinger: I bel ieve the pol ice or law enforcement order containing objective 
supporting evidence is sufficient because if there is a cal l  with a question of domestic 
violence or sexual assau lt there is going to be an investigation done that wi l l  be included in 
the support. I can support that but I have concerns about the med ical record . I think if we left 
it and include the pol ice and law enforcement record , I think we are ok with that. 
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Representative Becker: I know in  many cases that the vast majority of apartment leases 
have if people run out on a lease that the min imum is the current month's rent and the 
fol lowing month so that they have paid in  advance. If someone had a not good reason to 
leave, the landlord is up  to two months in rent. 

Senator Burckhard : Can we have a recess? 

Representative Hatlestad : We wil l  recess for a few minutes. 

Senator Lee: I wanted to clarify what Representative Becker said- he talked about having 
th is additional deposit. The security deposit is not the last month's rent u nless the lease has 
said that it is the last month's rent. The landlord isn't necessarily going to have that extra 
month's rent. They have to go after it unless the lease specifies that if they break the lease 
they can take money. A security deposit is for damage. It isn't always going to be an even 
deal for the property manager. 

Representative Becker: I am just saying that in  many leases it is i n  the lease that there is an 
addition to a security deposit. 

Senator Burckhard :  I move that we recede the senate's amendments and further amend the 
b i l l  to accept item 1 subsection 1 and 2 and strike everything after 'evidence' .  

Chairman Hatlestad : So we are looking at the court order and the police or law enforcement 
records. 

Senator Grabinger: Second 

Representative Oversen : I think it should a lso include ' ind icating domestic violence or 
sexual assault' in the second option .  

Senator Lee: We already mentioned that. 

A Roll Cal l  Vote Was Taken :  Yes 4, No 2, Absent 0 

Motion carries 

Representative Hatlestad wi l l  carry the bi l l  to the House 

Senator Grabinger wi l l  carry the bi l l  to the Senate 



2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Political Subdivisions Committee 
Prairie Room, State Capitol 

HB 1217 
4/20/2015 

26283 

D Subcommittee 
IZI Conference Committee 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the rental of a dwelling to a victim of domestic violence. 

Minutes: 

Chairman Hatlestad: Opened the conference committee on 1217. We were thinking about 
balancing the rights of the people involved. We had a proposed amendment that didn't 
succeed. Let's see what we can do from here. 

Senator Burckhard: We did that and I would propose the following changes ... Line 15 that 
we would say 'court order, protection order under section 14-07.1-02 , ex-parte temporary 
protection , order prohibiting contact, restraining order, or other record filed with a court.' 
Remove the word "or" and eliminate lines 18 and 19. We only learned after the last meeting 
that the ex-parte temporary protection order does not require a court appearance and we 
also believe that a police report should never be used alone to invalidate a legally binding 
contract. We think all we need is line 15-17 and to renumber line 15. I think we feel strong 
about those changes and I move to recede from the previous amendments and add the 
new amendments. 

Senator Lee: Second. If item two would to be deleted or to remain in, it would die in the 
senate and I hate to lose any part that would be important for this to work. Our attorneys in 
the Senate who were ready to speak on the floor will take this on . I think we could settle on 
the part they find acceptable and appealing. 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken : Yes 5, No 1, Absent 0 

Motion Carries 

Chairman Hatlestad: Closed the conference committee on HB 1217. 
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Adopted by the Political Subdivisions 
Committee 

April 14, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1217 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1416 of the House Journal 
and pages 1153 and 1154 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1217 be 
amended as follows: 

Page 2, line 12, overstrike "a" 

Page 2, line 13, overstrike "protection order" 

Page 2, line 13, overstrike "under section 14-07 .1-02" 

Page 2, line 15, after the first comma insert "protection order under section 14-07 .1-02. ex 
parte temporary" 

Page 2, line 15, after the second underscored comma insert "order prohibiting contact, 11 

Page 2, line 16, after the underscored semicolon insert 11
...Q.[

11 

Page 2, line 17, remove the underscored semicolon 

Page 2, remove lines 18 through 25 

Page 2, replace line 26 with "containing objective supporting evidence indicating domestic 
violence or sexual assault: and" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0607.02002 



15.0607.02004 
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Adopted by the Political Subdivisions 
Committee 

April 20, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1217 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1416 of the House Journal 
and pages 1153 and 1154 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1217 be 
amended as follows: 

Page 2, line 14, remove the underscored colon 

Page 2, line 15, replace "ill 8." with "a" 

Page 2, line 15, after the first underscored comma insert "protection order under section 
14-07 .1-02. ex parte temporary" 

Page 2, line 15, after the second underscored comma insert "order prohibiting contact," 

Page 2, remove lines 17 through 26 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0607.02004 
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BILL/RESOLUTION NO. HB 1 2 1 7  as (re) engrossed 

House Pol itical Subd ivisions Comm ittee 

Action Taken D HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments 

Date: 4/1 4/20 1 5  
Rol l  Cal l  Vote #: 1 

D HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments and further amend 

D S ENATE recede from Senate amendments 

� SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to ag ree, recommends that the committee be d ischarged and a new 
committee be appointed 

Motion Made by: Senator Burckhard 

Representatives 

Representative Hatlestad 
Representative Becker 
Representative Oversen 

Total Rep. Vote 

Vote Count Yes :  4 

House Carrier �\> \-lo..\-\�QG\ 

LC Number 1 5 . 0607 

LC Number 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 

Yes No 
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Seconded by: Senator Grabinger 

Senators Yes 

Senator Burckhard 
Senator Lee 
Senator Grabinger 

Total Senate Vote 

No: 2 Absent: 0 
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D HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments and fu rther amend 

D S ENATE recede from Senate amend ments 

� S ENATE recede from Senate amend ments and amend as follows 

D U nable to agree, recommends that the committee be d ischarged and a new 
comm ittee be appointed 

Motion Made by: �0'<'CYl00\0. Seconded by: .... L'""'e:=e _________ _ 
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Com Conference Committee Report 
April 15, 2015 8:02am 

Module ID: h_cfcomrep_67 _006 

Insert LC: 15.0607.02002 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
HB 1217, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Burckhard, J. Lee, Grabinger 

and Reps. Hatlestad, Rich S. Becker, Oversen) recommends that the SENATE 
RECEDE from the Senate amendments as printed on HJ page 1416, adopt 
amendments as follows, and place HB 1217 on the Seventh order: 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1416 of the House Journal 
and pages 1153 and 1154 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1217 be 
amended as follows: 

Page 2, line 12, overstrike "a" 

Page 2, line 13, overstrike "protection order" 

Page 2, line 13, overstrike "under section 14-07 .1-02" 

Page 2, line 15, after the first comma insert "protection order under section 14-07 .1-02, ex 
parte temporary" 

Page 2, line 15, after the second underscored comma insert "order prohibiting contact." 

Page 2, line 16, after the underscored semicolon insert "..QI" 

Page 2, line 17, remove the underscored semicolon 

Page 2, remove lines 18 through 25 

Page 2, replace line 26 with "containing objective supporting evidence indicating domestic 
violence or sexual assault: and" 

Renumber accordingly 

Engrossed HB 1217 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_cfcomrep_67 _006 



Com Conference Committee Report 
April 21, 2015 8:05am 

Module ID: h_cfcomrep_71_007 

Insert LC: 15.0607.02004 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
HB 1217, as reengrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Burckhard, Grabinger, J. Lee 

and Reps. Hatlestad, Rich S. Becker, Oversen) recommends that the SENATE 
RECEDE from the Senate amendments as printed on HJ page 1416, adopt 
amendments as follows, and place HB 1217 on the Seventh order: 

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1416 of the House Journal 
and pages 1153 and 1154 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1217 be 
amended as follows: 

Page 2, line 14, remove the underscored colon 

Page 2, line 15, replace "ill 8." with "a" 

Page 2, line 15, after the first underscored comma insert "protection order under section 
14-07.1-02. ex parte temporary" 

Page 2, line 15, after the second underscored comma insert "order prohibiting contact." 

Page 2, remove lines 17 through 26 

Renumber accordingly 

Reengrossed HB 1217 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_cfcomrep_71_007 
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15.0607 . 0 1 00 1 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Delmore 

January 23, 201 5 

PROPOSED AMENDM E NTS TO HOU SE BILL NO. 1 2 1 7  

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  replace the first "section" with "sections" 

Page 1 ,  line 1 ,  remove " ,  subsection 2 of section 1 4-07 . 1 -0 1 ," 

Page 1 ,  line 2, remove "section" 

Page 2, remove lines 3 through 9 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 1 5.0607 . 0 1 00 1  
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Cha ir  Klem in a nd Membe rs of the Committee, 

My name is Janelle Moos and I am the Executive Director of the CAWS North Dakota. Our Coalition is a 

membership based organization that consists of 20 domestic violence a nd rape crisis centers that 

provide services to victims of domestic violence, sexual assault, a nd stalking in all 53 counties and the 

reservations in North Dakota. I'm speaking this morning on their behalf in support of HB 1217. 

If enacted, H B  1217 is a step towards increasing protections for a nd providing victims with meaningful 

safeguards especially in emergency and potential ly lethal situations involving domestic violence. Many 

other states have included additional protections l ike those outlined in HB 1217 in order to address 

obstacles that survivors face in maintaining housi ng, such as being evicted for cal l ing the police or 

because the batterer caused a disturbance at the dwell ing. 

Examples of state a nd local domestic violence housing protections include laws that: (1)  prohibit housing 

discrimination based on a n  applicant or tenant's status as a survivor of domestic violence; (2) provide an 

eviction defense where the landlord tries to evict the victim because the abuser committed a crime or 

lease violation at the rental unit; (3) bar landlords from l imiting a tenant's right to ca l l  for police or 

emergency assistance; (4) require landlords to cha nge locks where tenants have provided 

documentation of domestic violence; a nd (5) permit early lease termination without further obligation 

to pay the rent where tenants provide land lords with documentation of domestic violence. 

In  Section 1, Subsection 3 is an important new provision that bans discrimination against victims in state 

housing programs only. Many victims have difficulty finding safe, affordable housing in North Dakota 

and if enacted this new law would remove a potential barrier a victim may encounter. We a re awa re of 

several instances where victims have encountered this type of situation a nd haven't been a ble to secure 

housing. 

Section 2 subsection 2 cleans up the language regarding documentation is necessary in order to 

terminate you r  lease, a nd final ly, Section 3 Subsection 11 would al low victims of domestic violence to 

seek lock cha nges when their abuser has access to their private rental residence. This bil l  was drafted 

using several examples from the 14 other states that have similar provisions. This applies only to the 

door of their leased property a nd would not a pply to the lock of a security building that all tenants use. 

I urge a DO PASS on HB 1217. 

Thank you. 

BISMARCK 222.8370 • BOTIINEAU 228-2028 · DEVILS LAKE 888.662.7378 • DICKINSON 225.4506 · ELLENDALE 349.4729 • FARGO 293.7273 • FORT BERTHOLD RESERVATION 627.41 71 
GRAFTON 352.4242 · GRANO FORKS 746.0405 · JAMESTOWN 888.353.7233 · McLEAN COUNTY 462.8643 · MERCER COUNTY 873.2274 · MINOT 852.2258 · RANSOM COUNTY 683.5061 
SPIRIT LAKE 766. 1 8 1 6  · STANLEY 628.3233 · TRENTON 774. l 026 · TURTLE MOUNTAIN RESERVATION 477.0002 · VALLEY CITY 845.0078 · WAHPETON 642.21 1 5  · WILLISTON 572.0757 
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North Dakota Apartment Association ' s  Test imony 

On House B i l l  1 2 1 7  
H ouse Pol itical Subdivi sions 

Prairie Room 
January 23 ,  20 1 5  

Chai rman K l e m i n  and members of the H ouse Pol itical Subdiv i s ions 
Comm ittee. My name is  Krista Andrews, and I appear today on behalf of 

the N orth Dakota Apartment Assoc iation (N DAA) in opposition to H ouse 
B i l l  1 2 1 7 . 

U nder the current l aw, a tenant may be re leased from thei r  contractual 

obl igations with the ir  landlord upon obtaini ng a protection order from a 
court. The N DAA is  supportive of the current l aw, and l andlords are 

d i l igent in ensuring compl iance with the l aw when a protection order i s  

issued. In these instances, a court rev iews a l legations of domestic 

v iolence and determ ines whether there is  a statutory bas is  for issuing a 
protect ion order. Once that dec ision h as been made by the courts, 

l andlords w i l l  re lease a tenant/vict im of domestic v io lence from their 
lease obl igat ions upon request of the tenant. 

The proposed amendments to paragraph 2 of section 4 7- 1 6- 1 7  . 1  remove 
the requirement that a tenant obtain  a protection order from the court in 
order to be rel ieved of their obl igations under the lease. I n  its p lace, 

tenants would only have to prov ide "notice" that they fear i m m i nent 
domestic v io lence from another i ndividual . I n  effect, the proposed 
amendment woul d  completely negate a tenant ' s  obl igations under their 

lease agreement, and make leases of no effect. 

As an example :  a tenant signs a one-year lease to rent an apartment unit  

for $750 per month . After two months, the tenant dec i des either the rent 
is more than they can afford, or maybe they want to move to another c ity, 



• 

and need to get out of their  l ease. By s i mply provi d ing thei r  l and lord w ith 

a notice that they fear i m m i nent domestic v iolence from another 

indiv idual (with no other proof required), the landl ord would  need to let 
the tenant out of their  l ease. The contractual agreement that the land lord 
entered into with the tenant wou l d  prov i de no protections for the landlord, 

resu lt ing i n  substantial fi nancial loss to the l andlord. 

The N DAA al so opposes the proposed amendments to paragraph 1 1  of 

sect ion 4 7- 1 6- 1 7  . 1 .  The amendments unfai rly p l ace the financ ial  burden 
on a landlord to pay for the costs of changing the locks to the unit of a 

v icti m  of domestic v io lence. Although the N DAA supports requiring 

l andlords to cooperate with vict ims of domest ic  v i o lence when they 
request a lock change, the fi nancial  burden must rest with the tenant and 

not the l andlord. 

Thank you for your cons ideration . I wou l d  be happy to address any 

questions . 
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Jeremy Petron 

Lobbyist # 172 

North Dakota Apartment Association 

Re : House Bil l 1217 

We (North Dakota Apartment Association), a re in  opposition to H B  1217, as written . 

There a re parts of th is  b i l l  that we feel a re over-reaching and  wi l l  cause undue burdens to 

property owners and property managers. 

Our fi rst a rea of concern is in Section 1, Lines 18 and 19 with the language stated as ' . . .  or 

evicted from . . .  '. This seems l i ke a worthy approach to protect victims of domestic violence, 

• however, there a re some potentia l  un intended consequences. A domestic violence vict im 

could use th is  law as  a means to cause other lease violations without worry or  regard to being 

evicted, especia l ly if there are mu lt ip le actions that a re d isturb ing the q u iet enjoyment rights of 

surround ing neighbors. 

A property owner or manager needs to have the right to evict a resident or non-renew a 

lease when a resident's lease violations become a h indrance in  the ab i l ity to properly manage 

the property for a l l  residents to enjoy. U nder the language in th is  b i l l , a vict im of domestic 

v io lence could essent ia l ly be protected from any eviction action s imply by citing that they a re a 

vict im of domestic violence, even if there are other lease violations such as non-payment of 

rent, d amage to the apartment or bu i ld ing, or loud parties, etc . 

• 
1 
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I n  my company of employment, we have had situations where neighboring residents 

have m oved out or req uested to move out because they don't feel safe l iving next to a 

domestic vio lence situation .  We are wi l l ing to work with vict ims who want to stay on the 

property if they a re actively trying to get out of a bad relationsh ip  and the d i sturbance 

situations cease to cont inue. Where we are forced to exercise an  eviction or  lease non-renewal 

action is when the domestic d isturbances continue and as a resu lt a re d isturbing the ne ighbors 

and/or causing add it ional  p roperty damage. 

Our second a rea of concern is in  Section 3 and the intent of this b i l l  to strike Lines 19, 

20, 23, and 24, in the current law that req u i res a protection order to be furnished to the 

l and lord if a vict im of domestic abuse wants or needs to terminate their  lease without pena lty 

or add it iona l  rent owed beyond a one (1 )  month notice. 

We feel the current law is a fa ir  provision for the land lord to have the option to requ i re 

a p rotection order be submitted by the victim as a means  to va l idate the legit imacy of the 

circumstances that a l lows that person to be released from their lease contract. If a p rotection 

order were not req u i red, th is  opens the door to many abuses of the system by a l lowing anyone 

who potentia l ly wants to get out  of  the i r  lease for any unwarranted reason, to s imp ly state they 

a re a vict im, even if th is  is a fa lse c la im . 

2 
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Our th i rd a rea of concern is in  Section 3, Page 3, Li nes 28 and 29, that would requ i re a 

land lord to replace the door locks at the expense of the land lord, if the vict im makes the 

request . This action becomes a cost to the land lord through no fau lt of their own . 

It i s  typica l ly standard practice for a lock to be changed at the property owner's expense 

before new residents move into an apartment. Also, most property owners and managers, if 

not a l l , wi l l  ob l ige any resident in  changing a lock at any time, with an option to have the cost 

i ncu rred by the resident. 

Another concern regard ing this amendment is that it cou ld potentia l ly put the land lord 

in  a tough situation where they are asked to lock out someone who has rights to that 

a partment under  the lease, s imp ly because the other person is c la iming domestic violence, and  

no protection order is furnished . 

3 



Proposed Amendments to HB 1217 

Page 2, line 19, after "stating" insert"~" 

Page 2, line 18, after "stating~" insert a new subdivision "a." 

Page 2, line 18, overstrike "that" 

Page 2, line 18, capitalize the "t" in the third "the" 

Page 2, line 20, remove "the notice" 

Page 2, line 20, after the overstricken language insert" 

(1) A court order, protection order, restraining order, or other record filed with a court; 
(2) A police or law enforcement record; 
(3) A medical record indicating domestic violence or sexual assault; or 
(4) A written affidavit provided by an individual who has assisted the tenant in dealing 

with domestic violence or sexual assault and who is a: 
(a) Licensed counselor; 
(b) Licensed social worker; 
( c) Member of the clergy; 
( d) Director or domestic violence advocate at a domestic violence sexual assault 

organization as defined in section 14-07.1-01; or 
( e) A licensed attorney; 

Page 2, line 20, after the comma insert a new subdivision "b." 

Page 2, line 20, capitalize the "t" in the second "the" 

Page 2, line 21, overstrike "and" 

Page 2, line 21, after the comma insert a new subdivision "c." 

Page 2, line 21, capitalize the "t" in the second "the" 

Page 2, line 21, after the period insert a new subdivision "d." 

Page 3, remove lines 28 through 29 



SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Section 47-16-17.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is 
amended and reenacted as follows: 

4 7-16-17 .1. Termination due to domestic abuse. 

1. A tenant to a residential lease who is a victim of domestic violence as defined in section 14-

07 .1-01 or fears imminent domestic violence against the tenant or the tenant's minor 

children if the tenant or the tenant's minor children remain in the lease premises may 

terminate a lease agreement, as provided in this section, without penalty or liability. 

2. The tenant must provide advance written notice to the landlord stating~ 

a. tihe tenant fears imminent domestic violence from a person named in 

(1) A court order. protection order, restraining order, or other record filed with a 

court; 

(2) A police or law enforcement record; 

(3) A medical record indicating domestic violence or sexual assault; or 

(4) A written affidavit provided by an individual who has assisted the tenant in 

dealing with domestic violence or sexual assault and who is a: 

(a) Licensed counselor; 

(b) Licensed social worker; 

(c) Member of the clergy; 

(d) Director or domestic violence advocate at a domestic violence sexual assault 

organization as defined in section 14-07.1-01; or 

(e) A licensed attorney; 

b. tihe tenant needs to terminate the tenancy, and 

c. Hhe specific date the tenancy will terminate. 

d. Uhe notice must be delivered by mail, facsimile communication, or in person before 

the termination of the tenancy. 

3. A landlord may not disclose ... 

. .... ,_, _____ , __ _ 
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(- M r. C h a i r m a n  a n d  m e m bers of the Sen ate Pol itica l S u bs Com m ittee-

( 
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For the reco rd, I a m  Lois Del more, a n d  I re present District 43, wh ich is 

the southwest q u a d ra nt of the city of G ra n d  Fo rks . 

I a m  h e re today to u rge yo u r  favora b l e  co ns ideration fo r House B i l l  

12 17 w h i c h  re l ates t o  the re nta l of a dwe l l i ng t o  vict ims of domestic 

vio lence .  The b i l l  i n creases the protections a n d  provides vict ims of 

domestic vio l e n ce i m portant safegu a rds  in e m e rge ncy or  potentia l ly 

d a ngerous  s ituat ions.  Someti mes th ese vict ims have a h a rd t ime fi n d i n g  

hous ing beca u se o f  the need t o  ca l l  pol ice for p rotection or  beca use the 

batte re r  h a s  ca used a d istu rba nce. 

Su bsect ion 3 of Section 1 of the b i l l  bans d iscri m i nation agai nst vict ims 

i n  state housing p rogra ms on ly. 

The a me n d ed section 2 s u bsection 2 expa nds the acce pta b le  fo rms of 

d ocu m e ntat ion beyond a protection ord e r  or  o rd e r  pro h i biti ng contact 

that a vict i m  may u se when req uest ing term i n ation of the ir  l ease.  

There a re others here to testify a n d who ca n better  d escribe p rovis ions 

of the b i l l  and the need fo r its passage . I u rge yo u r  favo ra b l e  

cons iderat ion o f  H o use B i l l  1217 a n d  wou l d  be h a p py t o  a nswer a ny 

q u est ions .  

Tha n k  yo u, Ch a i rm a n  Bu rckha rd a n d  com m ittee members .  
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Testimony on HB 1217 

Senate Politica l Subd ivisions 

April 2, 2015 

Cha ir  Burckhard and Members of the Com mittee, 

My name is Jane l le  Moos and  I am the Executive Di rector of the CAWS North Dakota .  Our 

Coa l ition is a m em bersh ip based organ ization that consists of 20 domestic vio lence and rape 

crisis centers that p rovide services to victims of domestic violence, sexua l  assau lt, and sta lk ing 

in  a l l  53 counties and  the reservations in  North Dakota . I 'm speaking this morning on their  

beha lf in support of H B  1217. 

If enacted, H B  1217 i s  a step towards increasing protections for and provid ing vict ims with 

mean ingful safeguard s  especia l ly  in emergency and potentia l ly letha l  situations involving 

domestic violence. M any other  states have i ncluded add it ional protections l i ke those outl ined 

i n  H B  1217 in order to address obstacles that survivors face in  mainta in ing housing, such as 

being evicted for ca l l ing the pol ice or because the batterer caused a d istu rbance at the 

dwel l ing. 

Examp les of state and loca l domestic violence housing p rotections include  laws that: (1 )  

p rohibit hous ing d i scrimination based on an appl icant or tenant's status as  a survivor of 

domestic vio lence; (2)  p rovide  an eviction defense where the land lord tries to evict the victim 

because the abuser committed a crime or  lease violation at the renta l un it; (3)  bar  land lords 

from l im iting a tenant's right to ca l l  for pol ice or emergency assistance; (4) requ i re land lords to 

change locks where tenants have provided documentation of domestic vio lence; and (5) perm it 

early lease term ination without fu rther obl igation to pay the rent where tenants provide 

land lords with documentation of domestic violence.  

In  Section 1,  Su bsection 3 i s  an i mportant new provision that bans d iscrim ination against 

vict ims in state housing programs on ly.  Many victims have d ifficu lty fi nd ing safe, affordab le 

hous ing in  North Dakota and  if enacted th is  new law would remove a potentia l  ba rrier a vict im 

may encounter. We a re aware of severa l  instances where victims have encountered this type of 

situation and haven't been ab le  to secure housing . 

The amended version of Section 2 subsection 2 was d rafted by a member of the House Political 

Subd ivisions Com mittee and expands the acceptable forms of documentation beyond a 
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p rotection o rder  o r  o rder prohibiting contact that a victim may use when requesting 

termination of their l ease and is the same documentation that is widely a ccepted by Job Service 

when a victim appl ies for unemployment com pensation due to domestic violence, sexua l  

assault or  stalk ing under Subdivision j of subsection 1 o f  section 52-06-02 o f  the North Dakota 

Century Code. 

I u rge a DO PASS on HB 1217.  

Thank you . 
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Chairman Burckhard and members of the Committee. For the record my name is Rocky Gordon 

a lobbyist for the North Dakota Apartment Association. Thank you for the opportunity to come 

before you today. We oppose HB 1 2 1  7 .  

This i s  a little bit of a tough. I ' ve seen firsthand the effects o f  domestic violence. Let' s b e  clear 

we are not opposed to a true victim of domestic violence being able to terminate the lease and 

relocate if necessary. We are not opposed to the concept. 

What we do oppose is setting up yet another well intentioned law being misused by people who 

simply want to terminate a lease. We believe that this bill does that. 

The current statute came out of a compromise several sessions ago. We recognized that there 

situations where leases do need to be terminated and current law provides for an impartial review 

before the lease can be terminated. We continue to support that approach. 

Section 2 of this bill was amended by your colleagues in the House and frankly I 'm left 

scratching my bald head. Do we recognize a residential lease as a legally binding document? If 

not let's  stop and say everybody leases on a month to month basis and there are not rent 

protections beyond 30 days for the tenant. I assure you month to month rates are and wil l  be 

much higher. I truly hope we recognize residential leases as legally binding documents. If so 

should a resident be allowed to terminate with review by a licensed counselor, social worker, 

clergy, advocate or attorney? If so why not a car lease or a mortgage contract? 

Now we understand the argument that victims may not want to come forward and appear before 

a judge. Our industry doesn't like appearing before judges either. If we need to terminate a 

lease for a substantial lease violation can we have clergy or attorney complete an affidavit and 
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the lease is terminated? My guess is Not! There has to be impartial oversight before a legally 

binding document can be set aside. Please don't set up another well intentioned law (like the 

companion animal law) that is easily abused. 

Please vote No on this bill and leave the current law in place. Passage of this legislation could 

have huge unintended consequences. 

Please don't help destroy the lease for term concept in the state of North Dakota. 

Thank you for listening and I would welcome as questions . 
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We (North Dakota Apartment Association ), a re in  opposition to H B  1217, specifica l ly 

page 2, l ines 15 - 26. Our concern is that this law cou ld  have u nintended consequences to be 

m isused for situations where a resident is lookin g  for an excuse to non-legitimately be released 

from a term lease agreement. If a resid ent only needs to h ave a written affidavit from a 

counselor, socia l  worker, clergy, or  attorney, then  this introduces bias in  the decision process. 

The current law requ ires a victim to obtai n  a protection order if they want and  need to 

be released from their lease agreement due to a domestic a buse situation. This  a l lows for a 

legal p rocess as  a neutral 3rd party to make the judgment cal l  for a warranted situation .  

We a re n ot against protections for vict ims of domestic abuse, b ut in  these situations, 

the property owner is put i n  a tough position over the lease contract that was freely entered 

i nto by the lessor and  lessee. Requiring a protection order is a non-biased a n d  neutral due  

process in  order to  void a term lease in these scenarios. 

We u rge a do n ot pass on HB 1217. 

1 
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The N orth Dakota Apartment Association opposes this bi l l ,  and in particular the amendments 
to N . D. C . C. § 47-1 6-1 7. 1 .  Under the existing legislation, a housing provider is required to 
allow a person who fears imminent domestic violence to terminate a residential lease prior to 
the end of the term if the resident has obtained a protection order following a court hearing. 
As a rule, housing providers have no issue with a lease termination in  that situation because 
a judge wil l  be involved in determining whether there are in fact realistic fears of imminent 
domestic violence. 

This amendment to N . D.C.C.  § 47-1 6-1 7. 1 would expand the situations in  which evidence 
could be furnished of the imminent domestic violence. With the exception of a court order, 
protection order, restraining order, or other record filed with a court, all of the other situations 
l isted in subsections 2(a)(2) through 2(a)(4) of this amendment are problematic in terms of 
the proof of imminent domestic violence. The records or affidavits referenced in those 
subsections simply wil l  not be detailed enough to reflect whether the tenant fears immi nent 
domestic violence. For instance, if a person wants to terminate their lease, they can provide 
a police record from 6 months ago where there was a domestic dispute, and that would be 
sufficient under the amendment to term inate the lease. 

The North Dakota Apartment Association especially has issues with subsection 2(a)(4), which 
provides that proof of imminent domestic violence can be derived from a written affidavit 
provided by an individual who has assisted the tenant in dealing with domestic violence or 
sexual assault. In the first instance, the amendment does not indicate when those individuals 
had assisted the tenant. 

Second, it has been the experience of housing providers that l icensed counselors, social 
workers, clergy members, attorneys and domestic violence advocates wil l  gladly pen an 
affidavit in these situations because there wil l  always be an effort to please the client, and 
also out of fear of l iability in the event the affidavit is not signed and an incident should occur. 

The North Dakota Apartment Association believes that these amendments are fraught with 
potential abuse. It al lows a person to easily terminate a lease for i l legitimate reasons. It will 
simply be too easy for a tenant in that situation  to go to h is or her pastor, for i nstance, and 
have the pastor write a note without any verification from the tenant as to whether in  fact there 
is any fear of imminent domestic violence. 

A lease is a binding contract, and it is taken seriously by the housing providers and should 
be taken seriously by the tenants as wel l .  If it becomes this easy to break a lease, housing 
providers likely will resort to one month leases, which wil l  not be helpful to tenants. 

The North Dakota Apartment Association would agree to compromise by deleting subsections 
2(a)(2) through 2(a)(4) but amending subsection 2(a) to delete the words "after a hearing". 
That would al low the person who actually fears imminent domestic violence to terminate a 
lease by obtaining an ex parte protection order or no-contact order. 

We urge a do not pass on House Bil l  1 2 1 7, or at least an amendment as indicated . 
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Page 2, line 26, after "affidavit" insert ", containing objective supporting evidence," 
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a.  The tenant fears imminent domestic violence from a person named in :  

(1)  A court order, protection order under section 14-07.1-02, ex pa rte temporary protection 

order, order prohibiting contact, restra in ing order, or other record fi led with a court; 

(2) A pol ice or  law enforcement record conta ining objective supporting evidence; or 

(3) A medica l record, conta in ing objective supporting evidence ind icating domestic violence or  

sexual assau lt .  




